5 Herefordshire
Council

AGENDA

Environment Scrutiny
Committee

Date:  Monday 28 February 2011

Time: 9.30 am

Place: The Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road,
Hereford

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting.
For any further information please contact:

Paul James, Democratic Services Officer
Tel: 01432 260460
Email: pjames@herefordshire.gov.uk

If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in
another format or language, please call Paul James, Democratic Services
Officer on 01432 260460 or e-mail pjames@herefordshire.gov.uk in
advance of the meeting.



Agenda for the Meeting of the Environment
Scrutiny Committee

Membership

Chairman Councillor Rl Matthews
Vice-Chairman Councillor PJ Watts

Councillor WU Attfield
Councillor CM Bartrum
Councillor GFM Dawe
Councillor DW Greenow
Councillor JW Hope MBE
Councillor TW Hunt
Councillor PM Morgan
Councillor A Seldon
Councillor NL Vaughan

GUIDANCE ON DECLARING PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS AT MEETINGS

The Council’'s Members’ Code of Conduct requires Councillors to declare against an Agenda item(s)
the nature of an interest and whether the interest is personal or prejudicial. Councillors have to decide
first whether or not they have a personal interest in the matter under discussion. They will then have to
decide whether that personal interest is also prejudicial.

A personal interest is an interest that affects the Councillor more than most other people in the area.
People in the area include those who live, work or have property in the area of the Council. Councillors
will also have a personal interest if their partner, relative or a close friend, or an organisation that they
or the member works for, is affected more than other people in the area. If they do have a personal
interest, they must declare it but can stay and take part and vote in the meeting.

Whether an interest is prejudicial is a matter of judgement for each Councillor. What Councillors have
to do is ask themselves whether a member of the public — if he or she knew all the facts — would think
that the Councillor’s interest was so important that their decision would be affected by it. If a Councillor
has a prejudicial interest then they must declare what that interest is. A Councillor who has declared a
prejudicial interest at a meeting may nevertheless be able to address that meeting, but only in
circumstances where an ordinary member of the public would be also allowed to speak. In such
circumstances, the Councillor concerned will have the same opportunity to address the meeting and on
the same terms. However, a Councillor exercising their ability to speak in these circumstances must
leave the meeting immediately after they have spoken.



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 28 FEBRUARY 2011

AGENDA

Pages

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
To receive apologies for absence.
2, NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY)

To receive details any details of Members nominated to attend the meeting
in place of a Member of the Committee.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on
the Agenda.

4. MINUTES 1-12
To approve and sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 26 November 2010.

5. SUGGESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ON ISSUES FOR
FUTURE SCRUTINY

To consider suggestions from members of the public on issues the
Committee could scrutinise in the future.

6. UPDATE ON PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY 13-24

To provide an update on progress and issues set out in the Public Rights of
Way report considered by Environment Scrutiny Committee on 13" July
2010.

7. ROAD OVER RAIL BRIDGES 25-30

To inform the Committee on the number and condition of road over rail
bridges, the responsibilities for maintenance, and the means of determining
that maintenance.

8. PRELIMINARY FLOOD RISK ASSESSMENT 31-38

To:

Introduce the requirements of the Flood Risk Regulations 2009 and
the Flood and Water Management Act 2010 in regard to the
development of a Local Flood Risk Management Strategy for
Herefordshire; and in particular the requirement for Herefordshire
council as the Lead Local Flood Authority to prepare a Preliminary
Flood Risk Assessment.

To seek the Committee’s views on the modification of the indicative
national assessment of flood risk in Herefordshire; and

To seek the Committee’s guidance on the local significance of the
criteria used in the preparation of the Preliminary Flood Risk
Assessment Report, and in the subsequent development of
Herefordshire’s Local Flood Risk Management Strategy.




9.

10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

INTRODUCTION TO EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANNING FOR
FLOODING IN HEREFORDSHIRE

To brief and provide information to the Committee on the
Herefordshire Multi-Agency Flood Plan (MAFP) and the development
of a Generic Reservoir Inundation Off-site Plan. Furthermore, to draw
the committee’s attention to the ongoing work programme that will
enhance and develop our emergency preparedness for flooding;
acknowledging the resources being committed by the Joint
Emergency Planning Unit (JEPU).

UPDATE ON THE PROPOSED HEREFORD TRANSPORT HUB

To update the Committee on progress in respect of the Transport Hub
concept being explored by Hereford Futures in association with the
redevelopment within the Edgar Street Grid area of Hereford.

CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING

To advise Scrutiny Committee on progress of the 2010/11 Environment
Capital Programme within the overall context of the Council’'s Capital
Programme.

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING

To advise members of the Environment Committee of the financial position
for the Environment budgets for the six months to 31%' December 2010. The
report lists the variations against budget at this stage in the year and the
projected outturn for the year.

ENVIRONMENT PERFORMANCE UP TO DECEMBER 2010

To report on the current outturns and progress against the actions for key
national performance indicator targets for Environment Scrutiny Committee
up to December 2010.

COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME

To consider the Committee work programme.

39 - 44

45 - 50

51-54

55 -60

61-68

69 -74



PUBLIC INFORMATION
HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL'S SCRUTINY COMMITTEES

The Council has established Scrutiny Committees for Adult Social Care
and Strategic Housing, Children’s Services, Community Services,
Environment, and Health. An Overview and Scrutiny Committee
scrutinises corporate matters and co-ordinates the work of these
Committees.

The purpose of the Committees is to ensure the accountability and
transparency of the Council's decision making process.

The principal roles of Scrutiny Committees are to

Help in developing Council policy

e Probe, investigate, test the options and ask the difficult questions
before and after decisions are taken

e Look in more detail at areas of concern which may have been raised
by the Cabinet itself, by other Councillors or by members of the public

e "call in" decisions - this is a statutory power which gives Scrutiny
Committees the right to place a decision on hold pending further
scrutiny.

e Review performance of the Council

e Conduct Best Value reviews

¢ Undertake external scrutiny work engaging partners and the public

Formal meetings of the Committees are held in public and information

on your rights to attend meetings and access to information are set out
overleaf



PUBLIC INFORMATION
Public Involvement at Scrutiny Committee Meetings

You can contact Councillors and Officers at any time about Scrutiny
Committee matters and issues which you would like the Scrutiny
Committees to investigate.

There are also two other ways in which you can directly contribute at
Herefordshire Council’s Scrutiny Committee meetings.

1. Identifying Areas for Scrutiny

At the meeting the Chairman will ask the members of the public present if
they have any issues which they would like the Scrutiny Committee to
investigate, however, there will be no discussion of the issue at the time
when the matter is raised. Councillors will research the issue and consider
whether it should form part of the Committee’s work programme when
compared with other competing priorities.

Please note that the Committees can only scrutinise items which fall within
their specific remit (see below). If a matter is raised which falls within the
remit of another Scrutiny Committee then it will be noted and passed on to
the relevant Chairman for their consideration.

2. Questions from Members of the Public for Consideration at
Scrutiny Committee Meetings and Participation at Meetings

You can submit a question for consideration at a Scrutiny Committee
meeting so long as the question you are asking is directly related to an item
listed on the agenda. If you have a question you would like to ask then
please submit it no later than two working days before the meeting to
the Committee Officer. This will help to ensure that an answer can be
provided at the meeting. Contact details for the Committee Officer can be
found on the front page of this agenda.

Generally, members of the public will also be able to contribute to the
discussion at the meeting. This will be at the Chairman’s discretion.

(Please note that the Scrutiny Committees are not able to discuss
questions relating to personal or confidential issues.)



Remits of Herefordshire Council’s Scrutiny Committees
Adult Social Care and Strategic Housing

Statutory functions for adult social services and Strategic Housing.
Children’s Services

Provision of services relating to the well-being of children including
education, health and social care, and youth services.

Community Services Scrutiny Committee

Cultural Services, Community Safety (including Crime and Disorder),
Economic Development and Youth Services.

Health

Scrutiny of the planning, provision and operation of health services
affecting the area.

Environment

Environmental Issues
Highways and Transportation

Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Corporate Strategy and Finance
Resources

Corporate and Customer Services
Human Resources



The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at
Meetings

YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: -

e Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the
business to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information.

e Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the
meeting.

¢ Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to
six years following a meeting.

¢ Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up
to four years from the date of the meeting. (A list of the background papers to a
report is given at the end of each report). A background paper is a document on
which the officer has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available
to the public.

e Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all
Councillors with details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and
Sub-Committees.

e Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council,
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees.

e Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title.

e Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access,
subject to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per
agenda plus a nominal fee of £1.50 for postage).

e Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of
the Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy
documents.



Please Note:

Agenda and individual reports can be made available in large
print. Please contact the officer named on the front cover of this
agenda in advance of the meeting who will be pleased to deal
with your request.

The Council Chamber where the meeting will be held is accessible for
visitors in wheelchairs, for whom toilets are also available.

A public telephone is available in the reception area.

Public Transport Links

e Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via the service runs
approximately every half hour from the ‘Hopper bus station at the Tesco store in
Bewell Street (next to the roundabout junction of Blueschool Street / Victoria Street /
Edgar Street).

e The nearest bus stop to Brockington is located in Old Eign Hill near to its junction
with Hafod Road. The return journey can be made from the same bus stop.

If you have any questions about this agenda, how the Council works or would like more
information or wish to exercise your rights to access the information described above,
you may do so either by telephoning the officer named on the front cover of this agenda
or by visiting in person during office hours (8.45 a.m. - 5.00 p.m. Monday - Thursday
and 8.45 a.m. - 4.45 p.m. Friday) at the Council Offices, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road,
Hereford.

inked without bleaching and free from optical brightening agents (OBA). Awarded the

@ Where possible this agenda is printed on paper made from 100% Post-Consumer waste. De-
<9 Nordic Swan for low emissions during production and the Blue Angel environmental label.




HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD.

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring
continuously.

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the
nearest available fire exit.

You should then proceed to Assembly Point A which is located at
the southern entrance to the car park. A check will be undertaken
to ensure that those recorded as present have vacated the
building following which further instructions will be given.

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of
the exits.

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning
to collect coats or other personal belongings.



AGENDA ITEM 4

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL

MINUTES of the meeting of Environment Scrutiny Committee
held at The Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road,
Hereford on Friday 26 November 2010 at 9.30 am

Present: Councillor PJ Watts (Vice Chairman)

Councillors: WU Attfield, CM Bartrum, GFM Dawe, JHR Goodwin, TW Hunt,
G Lucas, PM Morgan, A Seldon and NL Vaughan

In attendance: Councillors: WLS Bowen, PJ Edwards and DB Wilcox (Cabinet Member -
Highways and Transportation)

COUNCILLOR PJ WATTS IN THE CHAIR.
43. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies were received from Councillor Rl Matthews (Chairman) and Councillor DW
Greenow. Apologies were also received from Councillor JG Jarvis, Cabinet Member
(Environment & Strategic Housing).
44, NAMED SUBSTITUTES
Councillor G Lucas substituted for Councillor DW Greenow.

45. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

8. Railways - update report.
Councillor GFM Dawe, Personal, As Chair of the Rail for Herefordshire Group.

11. Connect 2 Greenway — Scheme Update

Councillor MD Lloyd-Hayes (in attendance) declared a personal interest as a member of the
Greenway Steering Group.

46. MINUTES

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held 13 September 2010 be confirmed as
a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

47. SUGGESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ON ISSUES FOR FUTURE
SCRUTINY

No suggested areas for scrutiny were received.
48. LOCAL TRANSPORT PLAN

The Committee received an update on progress made in preparing the third Local Transport
Plan (LTP) and were invited to comment on the emerging strategy.

A number of written questions concerning the LTP3 had been received before the meeting
from Mrs E Morawiecka. The questions and the written response have been appended to
these minutes.




The Transportation Manager presented his report which set out: the history to the LTP
and its importance to the County; the consultation undertaken in developing the
emerging strategy; the significant funding pressures in the next few years around
highway and transport services.

He also gave a presentation summarising the development of the LTP, current
understanding of future funding and the timetable for adopting the strategy. Committee
Members had previously received a copy of the draft LTP.

On scrutinising the report the Committee noted the following principal points:

Data for anticipated traffic growth in the City had been derived from various
surveys and this had been modelled using the SATURN (Simulation and
Assignment of Traffic to Urban Road Networks) system which in turn had been
fed into the Local Development Framework model. Growth indicated in the LDF,
and following consultation with the planning section, had been used to assess
traffic growth in the rural areas. Statistics on traffic growth in Leominster had
been based on work undertaken by a potential developer. The intention was to
mitigate national trends/behaviours for increased local journeys.

Statistics on fuel price/use used government projections within the SATURN
system and were used as an industry standard.

It was agreed that a number of aspirational elements in the LTP, particularly
concerning rural roads and road maintenance, would need to be redrafted to
provide greater focus. Funding issues will become an important issue especially
in view of reduced government funding.

Questioned whether the funding for the relief road could instead be used to fund
improved sustainable transport (bus and cycle/walk ways) the Cabinet Member
(Highways and Transportation) responded that the relief road was not a stand
alone option. If the County wanted economic growth then a relief road and
integrated transport would be needed and this had been endorsed by
government ministers. He also pointed out that support to bus services was
revenue funding and constructing a relief road would be capital funding.

With an aging population it was questioned whether the traditional public
transport service would be adequate in the long term. Questions were also
raised regarding the 20% reduction in bus operator subsidy. The Cabinet
Member (Highways and Transportation) responded that the LTP sought to
ensure that a reasonable level of service was provided to the rural communities
and pointed out that the subsidy reduction was due to government cuts. The
Council were discussing the implications with operators. To maintain the current
subsidy level would require support from Council resources.

The Cabinet Member (Highways and Transportation) reported that he would also
be discussing the resources situation with community transport operators.
Comment was made that the LTP lacked any sense of how initiatives would be
prioritised. The Assistant Director Highways Transport and Community Services
responded that this would be difficult to do in view of the current funding
uncertainties.

Questioned on how improvements to cycleways/footways were anticipated, the
Committee noted that in the current financial circumstances resources may need
to go to their maintenance, rather than the provision of new routes.

Questioned how the relief road accorded with the Council’s Green Infrastructure
Plans as, according to the relief road route diagram in the LTP, it severed a
number of green routes to the West of the City. The Committee noted that the
diagram in the draft LTP was a conceptual route. Various measures would be
taken as part of any major development to protect the green routes.

Following a public question regarding whether ‘smart bus services’, park and ride
and sustainable measures had been considered instead of the relief road the
Assistant Director Highways, Transport and Community Services reported that



49.

improved public transport and other measures were included in the LTP.
However, improving public transport in and around the City was dependent on
improving traffic movement which would be facilitated by the proposed relief
road.

¢ Questioned about whether statements or evidence contained in various reports
undertaken or commissioned in the last few years had been taken into account,
e.g. the Natural England report 2010, the Sustainable Communities Director
responded that, depending on the report author's stance, some reports could
appear contradictory with others, however, all evidence had been taken in to
account.

RESOLVED: That where appropriate the comments made during the course of
discussion be used by officers to inform the further drafting of the Local
Transport Plan (LTP3).

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE 2009 - 10 (GEM)

The Committee considered information on the Council’s performance on environmental
issues in 2009/10 in relation to commitments made, in particular in the environmental
policy and corporate plan. (Good Environmental Management — GEM)

The Sustainability Officer presented the agenda report and highlighted: the five long term
outcomes identified under the Corporate Plan environmental objectives; that the National
Indicator set had now been dropped which meant that future reporting formats would
have to be revised, and there was merit in expanding the set of measures reported
against, and these were further set out in the report. Overall performance for 2009/10,
indicated by the ‘Year End Report’, was good.

During the course of scrutinising the performance report the following principal points
were noted:

e A number of issues within the ’Natural and Built Environment’ section would be
governed by the Local Development Framework once approved.

e The staff travel plan target had been achieved.

e One Council school, which was in the course of being redeveloped, and five
private schools did not have school travel plans.

e |t was suggested that while the use of recycled paper was commendable, cutting
the use of papers would be more beneficial.

e The Sustainable Communities Director reported that a more strategic approach,
following the national programme lead by the Carbon Trust, was being taken by
the Council and PCT to ensure that carbon and cost savings were being made.
The Council has set up a Carbon Board to consider how further initiatives could
be progressed.

¢ Questioned on how the results for objective CM2 (per capita reduction in CO2)
had been derived, it was noted that while these related to national statistics the
local definition may need revising.

e Schools are large users of heat and power and Property Services were working
with schools to reduce their carbon footprint. However, in many cases the
required improvements would involve significant capital investment.

e Concern was expressed that if the County exceeded the household waste
‘contract cost trigger’, a large fine would be incurred. (objective WM1&2)

e Responding to a suggestion that an extension of the 20mph zones would
contribute to safer communities and cut carbon, the Cabinet Member (Highways
and Transportation) commented that commentary on 20mph zones was included
in the draft Local Transport Plan. A review of all the speed limits in the County
was underway.



50.

e Questioned on how achievements for LEQ1 (environmental cleanliness) had
been derived the Committee noted that a range of areas were sampled and
compared against national indicators.

RESOLVED: That the Environmental Performance 2009-2010 report be noted.
RAILWAYS - UPDATE REPORT

Councillor GFM Dawe, declared a personal interest as Chairman of the ‘Rail for
Herefordshire Group'.

The Committee received an update on planned improvements for rail services and
facilities in Herefordshire.

In response to the Committee request in June 2010 when Members criticised the rail
operators for overcrowding on the Ludlow-Leominster-Hereford trains and concerns
about the lack of access facilities, the Committee were informed by the Transportation
Manager that: responsibility for the rail services and facilities in Herefordshire lay with a
number of train operating companies and network rail; Arriva Trains Wales were
developing measures to address overcrowding problems on the Ludlow-Hereford line,
and improved access for users of Hereford and Leominster rail stations had now been
programmed with Leominster works due to commence in January 2011. The agenda
report summarised other key areas of progress in terms of ongoing and planned
improvement to rail facilities and services in the County.

During the course of debate the following principal points were noted:

¢ Questioned whether the Council were in dialogue with the various rail franchise
companies the Committee noted that meetings were held with the companies
concerning a range of rail issues, however, being national companies meetings
were sometimes difficult to arrange.

e Noting the recent government announcement to make a massive investment in
rail infrastructure and questioning whether any improvements would be seen to
county rail services, the Transportation Manager commented that the investment
would be directed to London, the South East and major rail routes. The County
may benefit from the knock on effect to the introduction of new rolling stock.

e While paragraph 13 of the report stated that ‘track improvements between
Hereford and Ledbury...... are likely to be prohibitively expensive’ a Member
claimed that it wasn’t prohibitively expensive when compared to the total LTP
funding.

e It was suggested that being part of a ‘Quality Rail Partnership’ may give added
weight to any lobbying to get improved rail services.

The Cabinet Member (Highways and Transportation) commented that with only four
stations (Hereford, Leominster, Ledbury and Colwall) Herefordshire wasn’t seen as a
priority by the franchise companies. Therefore this needed to be seen in the wider
context and may be raised with the Local Enterprise Partnership. He also commented
that he would be meeting with Lord Faulkner and would take the opportunity to put the
case for twin-tracking, or at least passing loops, on the Hereford to Ledbury line.

RESOLVED: that the position outlined in the report be noted and the key providers
of rail services and facilities in the County be invited to a future meeting to
discuss issues of concern.



51.

52.

REPORT OF THE REVIEW GROUP ON THE HEREFORDSHIRE TRAVELLERS'
POLICY

The Committee considered the findings of the review of the Travellers’ Policy and
progress made on the actions arising from the Herefordshire Travellers’ Policy adopted
on 25 November 2008.

The Chairman of the Review, Councillor WLS Bowen, reported that in 2008 the
Travellers’ Policy had been reviewed and a number of recommendations had been
made. In accordance with the Committee’s wish a further review had recently been
undertaken and, having taken into account new government guidance and progress
made against a number of actions previously identified, the Review Group made six
further recommendations, set out in the report, for consideration by the Committee for
forwarding to the Executive for consideration.

The Member for Bringsty ward, and member of the Review Group, briefly outlined the
history to the Open Fields site at Linton, particularly in relation to its possible
redevelopment by a developer and urged that progress be made.

It was suggested that in view of future planning applications being made the Planning
Committee should be made aware of the Travellers’ Policy.

RESOLVED: That

1. the conclusions of the Review Group on the Herefordshire Travellers Policy
be agreed and forwarded to the Cabinet Member (Environment and
Strategic Housing) for consideration;

2. the Committee particularly supports the conclusion that work to secure the
redevelopment of the Open Fields, Bromyard, site be progressed without
undue delay;

3. the Executive response to the Review be reported to the first available
meeting of the Committee after the Cabinet Member (Environment and
Strategic Housing) has approved his response;

4. the Cabinet Member (Environment and Strategic Housing) considers
involving the Review Group in any further development of the Policy; and

5. that Members of the Planning Committee be reminded of the Travellers
Policy when considering planning applications for traveller sites.

COUNCIL VEHICLE FLEET

The Committee considered the results of the vehicle fleet review and details of the
proposed approach to management of the vehicle fleet.

The report set out that: interim arrangements had been put in place for fleet
management which provided assurance and control over the current fleet; management
of the individual leased vehicle fleet across Herefordshire Public Services was expected
to be consolidated and would ultimately be delivered from the Shared Services
Organisation; arrangements for managing the rest of the fleet was being developed with
the Council’s fleet management partner, Amey Herefordshire. These arrangements will
be put in place over the next 6 months so that the business fleet will be managed
centrally early in the next financial year. The new arrangements will prioritise the
development and roll out of policies and procedures that will help to reduce carbon
emissions (and with them cost) and reduce the risks associated with fleet operation.
Centralised fleet asset management will be rolled out commencing in April 2011.
Centralising fleet management will allow both the implementation of a more consistent
vehicle replacement policy and increased flexibility of asset use.



53.

54.

Questioned whether specific reductions in carbon emissions were planned the
Committee noted that in relation to the Council’s fleet these would be agreed as part of
the management agreement with Amey Herefordshire. In relation to the ‘gray fleet’
(Councillors and officers private vehicles when used for business) this would be looked
at as part of the overall carbon reduction policy.

It was suggested that alternative ways be explored for holding non-public meetings
thereby saving travelling e.g. teleconferencing.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted and officers further explore the use of
teleconferencing to further cut the business mileage.

CONNECT 2 GREENWAY - SCHEME UPDATE

Councillor MD Lloyd-Hayes (in attendance) declared a personal interest as a member of
the Greenway Steering Group.

The Committee received an update regarding the Connect 2 Greenway scheme prior to
submission of a planning application for the scheme.

The Construction Manager presented her agenda report and highlighted that following
representations from local residents in the vicinity of the Preferred Route (New Bridge),
additional investigations into possible routes utilising Outfall Works Road, the Welsh
Water bridge and Network Rail underpass were being undertaken. This work would be
sufficiently detailed to inform a decision on whether to submit the planning application for
the current preferred route or whether to alter the preferred route and follow the original
Welsh Water route.

Both options can still be delivered by spring 2013 which is the requirement of the
Sustrans funding for this project. The scheme budget remains at £2.6M.

The Committee noted that in the interest of best value and the long term provision of the
scheme the two options were being reviewed. Responding to a question concerning the
scheme the Committee noted that the scheme represented phase one of the intention to
take the cycle way to Holme Lacy.

RESOLVED: That the Committee noted the current position concerning the
Connect 2 Greenway scheme as set out in the report.

ENVIRONMENT PERFORMANCE UP TO SEPTEMBER 2010

The Committee considered the current outturns and progress against the actions for key
national performance indicator targets as they relate to Environment Scrutiny
Committee.

On scrutinising the performance indicated in the report the Committee expressed a
degree of concern that NI192 (household waste) was below target, however, it was
noted that recycling continued to be promoted.

The Committee further noted that while the Local Area Agreement (LAA) targets had
been removed, where a rational existed, the Council would continue to use a number of
targets for monitoring purposes.

RESOLVED: that the position set out in the performance report be noted.



55. CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING

The Committee considered progress of the 2010/11 Environment Capital Programme
within the overall context of the Council’s Capital Programme.

The Director of Resources representative presented the report and highlighted that the
total programme had reduced to £17,998k from the figure of £18,838k previously
reported and this together with other variances, were set out in more detail in the report
and appendix 1.

Questioned whether the cost of the poll (referred to at Council on 19 November 2010) to
seek public opinion on the relief road, as contained in the draft LDF, would be met from
the Environment budget the Sustainable Communities Director responded that officers
were currently looking into the possibility and feasibility of holding the poll. He
anticipated that if it went ahead the cost would be met from corporate budgets.

RESOLVED: That the position set out in the Budget Monitoring report be noted.
56. REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING

The Committee considered the financial position for the Environment budgets for the six
months to 30 September 2010.

The Director of Resources representative presented the report and highlighted that the
total environment budget for 2010/11 had increased to £24,921k from the amount
previously reported (£24,881k). While this was a net increase she highlighted budget
pressures in car parking due to reduced levels of income; public transport due to
increased fuel prices, and planning due to the continued use of the document scanning
system. Waste disposal was also being closely monitored in relation to the ‘contract cost
trigger’. Other variances were detailed in the report and appendix.

RESOLVED: That the position set out in the Revenue Budget Monitoring report be
noted.

57. COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME
The Committee noted the work programme.

RESOLVED: That the work programme be noted and it be recommended to the
Overview & Scrutiny Committee for approval.

The meeting ended at 12.30 pm CHAIRMAN




Questions for Environment Scrutiny Committee 26.11.10
From Mrs Morawiecka
And response to questions issued 6 December 2010

On the LTP 3

Question 1.

The Report to this scrutiny committee says that an earlier consultation took place at the start of
this year. Natural England submitted a report dated March 2010 on the Multi Modal study as part
of this consultation process. The Natural England report stated

‘Page 3:-

1. An ODR is forecast to increase the CO2 emissions by 2% & 10%.

3. Between 28-38 junctions in the city centre are forecast to cause considerable delay even with
the ODR. By considerable delay, we mean operating at between 85% and 120% of capacity.

5. The ODR has varied impact on NO2, which designates part of Hereford as an Air Quality
Management Area.

6. The ODR does not appear to be financially viable... TRL calculated that the ODR would
produce journey time saving benefits of around £46.5M over fifteen years; this is small compared
with the projected costs of the ODR of £130M, and suggests that, when estimated, the Benefit to
Cost Ratio for the scheme is likely to be low.

Page 4 Inadequate Options Testing:-

2. No modelling of the sustainable transport options, detailed in the Place Shaping Paper, was
undertaken.

3. The public transport provision modelled for 2026 was identical to that available in 2008.

4. Only one Park and Ride (P&R) option was modelled although the sustainable transport options
suggest there should be more than one.

5. A multi-modal study of this nature would be expected to consider several other options,
including enhanced public transport provision and alternative road construction requirements,
such as:

e  Substantial improvements to public transport including increased frequency and an
increased service area;

An additional river crossing without a full ODR;

Enhanced train services;

River Taxi;

More Park and Ride sites;

Flexible working hours (which would encourage peak spreading);

Reduction in car parking in the centre of city; and

Car sharing.

Page 5 “In response to Natural England’s specific questions:

it has not been shown by the study that the relief road is essential for the scale and distribution of
growth planned;

there are likely to be credible alternative sustainable transport package options that should have
been, and could be, considered;

insufficient information on the phasing of housing development is provided to be able to assess
how sustainable infrastructure investment could best be phased;

without further information on the contribution made to future year traffic movements by each
housing development it is not possible to fully assess how to best advance a western ODR route.
From the information provided, it is likely, however, that a western route would be difficult to
justify.”



Where have the officers involved in preparing the LTP3 communicated the conclusions of this
report to councillors and how has it been taken into account in preparing the LTP3?

Response:

The Local Development Framework Task Group, whose membership includes
Councillors and members of the Herefordshire Partnership including Mark July of Natural
England, were made fully aware of the Natural England report. The report was
considered within the Task Group and subsequent modelling work commissioned. The
outputs from the subsequent modelling were considered in the preparation of LTP3.

Question 2.

If the Hereford Relief road is considered “not financially viable” (see above point 6) and that “a
Western relief road would be difficult to justify” (point 5 above) resulting in a lack of funding for
this capital project, how would the non delivery of a new western inner relief road impact on the
delivery of the local transport plan, in the medium and long term?

Response:

The LTP has been produced to support the development proposals outlined within the
emerging LDF Core Strategy. A relief road is a key enabler for the scale of development
proposed within this emerging strategy for Hereford. The non-delivery of a relief road
would significantly impact both the delivery of the LDF and consequentially the LTP in
the medium and the long term.

Question 3.

The Amey Study of Options (Aug 2010) states “the eastern routes perform best in terms of
reducing delay within the City. Many of the overcapacity junctions are on the east side of
the city and as such the eastern bypass has the greatest improvement in these areas,
resulting in the overall best results”.

The LTP3 states (Page 17) “Whilst the strategic proposals for the city do not support the
identification of a fourth site to the east we will keep the need for an additional site
serving the east of the city under review during the plan period.”

LTP3 proposes a western inner relief road. This would indicate that the LTP3 is not addressing
the transport problems encountered on the majority of junctions operating beyond capacity, which
are regularly used by residents on the East and people coming from Worcester and Ledbury to
Hereford. Could the officers explain the reasons for this discrimination against the east of
Hereford and why these junctions are to be neglected by the transport strategy?

Response:

In terms of transportation and network performance an eastern route performs
marginally better then a western route. However, in terms of engineering and
environmental impacts a western route is the preferred option.

Question 4.

The LTP3 second strategic goal states “ to prepare for a low-carbon future by supporting
sustainable travel and ensuring responsible management plans are developed to maintain
Herefordshire’s transport assets”

However, the LTP3 shows the green infrastructure routes separately from the western inner relief
road, which disguises the severing affect of the western inner relief road on footpaths, bridleways
and the quiet country lanes in Breinton. The Western inner relief road will in fact cut right through
the centre of both the old Moorhampton rail line (the new proposed cycleway of the housing



development at Three EIms) and the historic Green Lane bridleway, the route of the Bishops of
Hereford to their summer residence and a bridleway interconnecting with many other footpaths
and bridleways all in daily use. The poor quality of the green infrastructure plan in the LTP, shown
as Figure G, completely omits the City’s only tourist cycle route that starts and finishes in the City
and utilises the lanes and bridleways around Breinton. It also fails to highlight the only national
trail that goes through Hereford — The Wye Valley Walk.

Instead, the LTP3 shows a different “green infrastructure corridor” that would appear to start and
finish in the middle of fields and is completely unconnected to any existing public footpaths,
bridleways or lanes.

How does the LTP3 plan to maintain these important historic, amenity, health and sustainable
routes, whilst at the same time building a large relief road right through the middle of these same
assets?

How does the western inner relief road proposal accord with the 2™ strategic goal?

Response:

The detailed planning of any relief road would include specific arrangements for
maintaining existing accesses and rights of way. As this work has not been undertaken it
is not possible to comment on any specific mitigation works which would be designed to
maintain these accesses and rights of way.

Question 5

The first strategic goal of the LTP3 is “to support long-term economic growth within
Herefordshire by improving journey time, reliability and predictability on key routes”. The
Amey Study of Options (Aug 2010) shows that with the provision of an inner western relief road
“4.2.10 It can be seen from the total times in table 4.2 that all modelled scenarios perform worse
than the 2008 base year”. Why then is this council pursuing a growth and transport strategy
which will increase journey times when this does not accord with their own strategic goal for
transport?

Response:

As stated previously the LTP supports the emerging LDF Core Strategy and as identified
within the question all scenarios tested result in increased journey times, including the
no-road scenario. The preferred option does, however, enable a significant increase in
transport movements and in particular amongst non-motorised forms of transport.
Further work would be undertaken as the strategy develops to improve traffic
management in the city, making best use of new infrastructure, further encouraging more
sustainable modes and seeking to ensure journey time reliability and predictability.

Question 6.

LTP3 states on page 31/32 “The Hereford Relief Road will also help contribute to reducing
pollutant concentrates within Hereford city as a lot of the traffic which currently passes through
the city centre will bypass Hereford and relieve the city from congestion. The subsequent transfer
of ownership of the A49 from the Highways Agency to the council will also allow sustainable
transport infrastructure to be installed along the route including bus priority measures and cycle
lanes.”

Could officers please indicate where and when the Highways agency has agreed to transfer the
ownership of the current A49 route to the council, especially as officers confirmed at the meeting
at Trinity school on 3.11.10 that the new western inner relief road will actually be a road that
passes through the middle of all the new housing and employment sites. Why are the Highways
Agency looking to adopt a single carriageway housing estate access road?

10



In addition, where did officers obtain evidence that the Hereford Relief road will contribute to
reducing pollutant concentrates within Hereford City when the Natural England report dated
March 2010 shows that

‘Page 3:-

1. An ODR is forecast to increase the CO2 emissions by 2% & 10%.

5. The ODR has varied impact on NO2, which designates part of Hereford as an Air Quality
Management Area.” ?

Response:

The Highways Agency has not agreed to transfer the ownership of the A49 to the
Council. The detailing of the relief road and its suitability as an alternative to the existing
A49 for trunk road purposes have been subject of ongoing discussions with the
Highways Agency and will be pursued subject to the proposal being adopted by the
Council.

The Natural England commissioned report refers to modelling carried out in 2009 (The
Hereford Multi Modal Model Forecasting Report) which has been superseded by revised
modelling which forms an element of the Relief Road Study of Options. Importantly, the
revised modelling includes sustainable transport packages which were not included in
the original modelling.

The original modelling predictions for changes in emissions provided global outputs for
the entire network and are not attributed to specific locations such as the A49 Air Quality
Management Area. The report concluded that the addition of the relief road would
reduce emissions associated with congested traffic (such as carbon monoxide) but
would increase emissions associated with distance travelled (such as carbon dioxide).

Question 7

As many of the emergency services are located to the east of the city what will be the impact on
the ability of emergency vehicles to attend incidents on the west and south of the city, where
there is due to be a 30% increase in housing, when some of the roads currently dual
carriageways will be reduced to single carriageways; and the overcapacity junctions will not have
been improved?

Response:
The emergency services have been fully consulted during the preparation of the

emerging LDF and LTP strategies and they will continue to be involved as formal
development plans emerge.

11



12



AGENDA ITEM 6

Herefordshire

Council
MEETING: ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
DATE: 28 FEBRUARY 2011

TITLE OF REPORT: | UPDATE ON PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY

REPORT BY: Parks, Countryside and Leisure Development
Manager

CLASSIFICATION: Open
Purpose

To provide an update on progress and issues set out in the Public Rights of Way report considered
by Environment Scrutiny Committee on 13" July 2010.

Recommendation

THAT: The report be noted.

Key Points Summary

o Environment Scrutiny Committee considered a review of the Public Rights of Way Service
performance and outcomes in July 2010. A request was made for an update in February 2011.

o An update of current issues and performance around Definitive Map Modification Orders, public
path orders and maintenance is set out.

o An update is provided on the list of issues presented by Mr. McKay at the July Environment
Scrutiny Committee meeting.

Alternative Options

There are no alternative options.

Reasons for Recommendations

1 This is an information report for Scrutiny Committee.

Introduction and Background

2 At the Environment Scrutiny Committee meeting of 13" July 2010, Members received a
comprehensive report setting out:

e an overview of the service including its transfer to Amey;

e the responsibilities of Amey and the Council;

e the public rights of way legal order functions including performance in achieving those orders;
statistics on the outstanding legal order work; the method of prioritisation and how the backlog
was being tackled.

For further information on the content o t his report please contact
Mr R Hemblade, Parks, Countryside and Leisure Development Manager on Tel: 01432 261981

13



¢ the historic position regarding maintenance of the network, the current backlog position, the
method of prioritisation of works, the involvement of the parish councils, and initiatives to
tackle the backlog.

e benchmarking against other authorities

¢ the methods that the Council and Amey use to communicate, promote and engage with local
communities and the wider public.

o the characteristics, differences and questions raised by members of the public concerning the
List of Streets and the Definitive Map.

e the designation and inspection of unsurfaced county roads.
3. The committee resolved that:

o the list of suggested issues for scrutiny submitted by Mr McKay be forwarded to officers.
Following consideration of the officer’'s response the Chairman and Vice-Chairman be
authorised to decide whether any issue(s) should be brought to Committee for consideration
as part of the Committee work programme.

o the Parks, Countryside & Leisure Officer investigate the possibility of obtaining funding from
other ‘partners’ who benefit from the public using the rights of way network e.g. NHS, tourism;

¢ further consideration be given to how the pubic are informed about route closures, particularly
major tourist routes, on the PROW network;

e consideration be given to approaching the NFU to urge them to remind their members of their
responsibilities concerning any Public Right of Way over their property; and

e should the Herefordshire Local Access Forum extend an invitation to Herefordshire Council to
meet with the Minister and MPs to discuss PROW issues, the Executive be requested that the
Chairman and Vice-Chairman be invited to represent the views of the Committee.

Key Considerations

4. An update, mainly in tabular form, has been set out below showing progress for legal orders and
maintenance

Orders Performance

5 The table below was presented to the committee in July 2010 and sets out the key stages of
processing legal orders and the performance since 2007. A 2010 column has been added to
show performance over the last year.

14



Highways Act Orders Town and Country Definitive Map Modification
Planning Act Orders Orders
2007 | 2008 | 2009 | 2010 | 2007 | 2008 | 2009 | 2010 | 2007 | 2008 | 2009 | 2010
W 2
0.0 o
- "('U' ©
O ~ ()
-CE> = > M 4 9 19 5 4 4 1 7 13 0 3
= O
) o
Z 3
©
« O
°8 &
o EO
Qg 2> 12 3 2 7 5 4 4 1 0 0 5 4
85
zZ9 <
(@]
T
58>
8E2 6 | 7| 4|5 | 6| 3| 3|20 0] 0] 1
552
=z88
S
Current position
6 The table below sets out the outstanding legal order work facing Herefordshire Council as at

1st February 2010 (as reported to Scrutiny in July 2010) and as at 1** January 2011

Highways Act Orders

Town and Country
Planning Act Orders

Definitive Map
Modification Orders

01/02/2010 | 01/01/2011

01/02/2010

01/01/2011

01/02/2010

01/01/2011

No. of applications
received but not yet
determined

63 57

1 1

85 83

No. of applications
determined but
awaiting order
making

16 16

No. of applications
for which an order
has been made and
to which objections
have been lodged
and is awaiting a
decision from
Secretary of State

No. of applications
received during
previous 12 months

15




The progress in tackling the backlog of Highways Act orders has been particularly significant.
This has been achieved by hard work on the part of the staff and a more robust approach to
dealing with contentious applications and those lacking sufficient support. At the July 2010
Scrutiny meeting, a new procedure for dealing with such public path order applications was
outlined that would have involved applicants appointing their own independent consultant to
manage the application process. As so much progress has been made and it now appears
likely that all future public path order applications can be managed by one (part-time)
member of staff by mid 2011, thus enabling the other staff resources to be redirected to work
on DMMO issues, the need for such a radical change in procedure has been reassessed. It is
now proposed that the Public Rights of Way team will continue to manage the public path
order process on behalf of applicants; applicants will be issued with enhanced guidance
making it clear what level of service the Public Rights of Way team will be able to provide.
They will still be free to appoint a consultant if they wish but this is unlikely to be necessary
except in the most complex cases. The charging level and structure will also be revised to
ensure that charges more accurately reflect the cost of providing the service and that the
Public Rights of Way team minimise the amount of work they carry out in this area that is not
rechargeable.

Since the July 2010 ESC meeting, the PROW Team has been asked to undertake two new
areas of work. The first of these is to research applications for amendments to the Council’s
statutory List of Streets. The List of Streets is a document that records all highways
maintainable at public expense. Unlike with Definitive Map Modification Orders there is no
prescribed mechanism for seeking or implementing changes to the document but nonetheless
the Council is required to act reasonably in this manner and modify the document when
justified by evidence. Due to the close similarities in the type of evidence likely to be
presented to the Council and the legal tests to be addressed in both List of Streets and
Definitive map modification order applications, it has been decided that the Public Rights of
Way definitive map modification order staff are best placed to deal with this additional work
flow. The number of List of Streets “applications” is currently small but may have some impact
on the availability of staff to deal with definitive map modification orders.

Of greater impact is the need to implement a solution to the Ordnance Survey’s Positional
Accuracy Improvement (PAI) programme. This was, in essence, a resurvey of the Ordnance
Survey (OS) base mapping and has resulted in an apparent shift in the relative positions of
some PROW and nearby physical features. Unfortunately the effect has not been uniform
across the county and to correct this it is necessary to check every individual PROW and
in some cases re-digitise its alignment. This project is a corporate GIS priority for the
Council and again the staff able to do the work are the PROW DMMO staff. A plan has been
drawn up that envisages a project duration of 10 - 15 months with the staff devoting
approximately 20% of their time to PAIl work. This will clearly have a direct impact on the
number of determinations that the team is able to achieve whilst the PAI project is going
on.

Finally, the PROW Team are also starting to deal with some of the contested orders that have
been made but not yet resolved. This involves submitting the orders to the Secretary of State
to determine, normally by means of a public inquiry. A three day inquiry is planned for June
2011 to determine such a contested order and this type of work will also impact on the
number of existing applications that can be determined. In the light of these factors the
suggested revised target numbers for 2011 are shown in bracket below

16



Highways Act Town and Country Definitive Map
Orders Planning Act Orders Modification Orders
2011 2012 [2013 2011 2012 2013 2011 | 2012 | 2013
Estimated number of
determinations per 15 20 20 4 4 4 6 (3) 8 10
year
Estimated number of]
orders made per 10 15 15 4 4 4 5 6 7
year
Estimated number of
confirmed orders per| g 12 12 4 4 4 3(2) 3 4
year
Maintenance
8 At the July Committee meeting, the tables below were presented to show the current

maintenance position as of the 31% May 2010. These tables have been updated to show the
current position. Bridges have been removed from the table and dealt with under paragraph 9.

Outstanding as of | Outstanding as of
31° May 2010 January 2011

Long Term | 108 113

Obstructions

General 6682 6159

Service

requests®

* . .
General Service requests covers all requests for PROW services currently recorded

Examples of | Outstanding | Outstanding as of January 2011
outstanding | as of May

maintenance | 2010

work**

Stiles 778 733

Gates 389 319

Signposts 758 671

Surface 667 Figures not available
vegetation

for

strimming

** The nature of the work can be missing,

broken, request for upgrade or requiring repair

17



Bridges

9

The poor condition of the bridge stock has resulted in a growing number of temporary closure
orders whilst defective structures await replacement or repair. More detailed analysis of the
work required to deal with these problems indicates that there are a total of 72 bridges that
require replacement now or within the next few years. This figure excludes ditch crossings
and small bridges of 4m span or less. Additionally, every year further structures are identified
that also require replacement. Of the 72 currently recorded, 32 have been costed and
programmed for replacement at a cost of approximately £228,000. The entire PROW capital
budget is £45,000 per annum of which £25,000 is identified for bridge works and other large
capital schemes. It can be seen that without significant investment the bridge stock is likely to
deteriorate further.

Enforcement

10

During the period, July 2010 — January 2011, the Enforcement Officer has issued a total
of 26 legal Notices, 21 of which have been for ploughing and cropping offences. 25 of these
were complied with by the 7 day deadline, with only one landowner receiving an invoice for
some enforcement costs.

The remaining 5 Notices have been in respect of other miscellaneous obstructions, of which
2 were long-term obstructions where all previous attempts at persuasion and co-operation had
failed. Only one Legal Notice has expired without resolution, but it has involved extensive
negotiation and site visits with several landowners and legal representatives, and there is
confidence that it will be resolved in the medium term by way of a Diversion Application.

All matters that were initially earmarked for consideration for prosecution have been
resolved either through negotiation or the service of Legal Notices. The need for prosecution
is always treated as a last resort, and it is a testament to the success of the enforcement
strategy over the past 6 months that this has not yet been necessary. However, prosecution
will always be considered in appropriate cases. If and when it becomes necessary in a
particular matter, then we will seek to maximise publicity in order to achieve greatest impact
among the landowner community.

The Amey Enforcement Officer and the Council’s Parks, Countryside & Leisure Manager
attended a meeting of the County branch of the National Farmers Union in January 2011.
There was lively discussion and it provided a useful opportunity to stress the importance
of a well maintained and useable PROW network to the rural community and to develop a
closer working relationship with the NFU.

List of issues raised by Mr P. McKay

11

At the July meeting, Mr. McKay presented a list of issues he felt should be considered by the
Scrutiny Committee. The committee resolved that rather than go through the issues, the list
should be handed over to officers to deal with and if the Chair felt any particular item needed
to be addressed by the committee it could be at a later date. The updated list along with
comments made by both officers and the Local Access Forum are attached. Rather than bring
any of the listed issues back to the committee, any outstanding matters should be worked
through by the local access forum or officers as set out.

Communications

12

Since the July Committee meeting the website has been further developed to include copies
of all current public notices and orders including emergency and temporary closures and

18



PPOs and DMMOs. The DMMO online register of orders has also been extensively improved
and complies with statutory requirements.

Community Impact

13 The public rights of way network is used extensively by local communities for walking, cycling,
horse riding, driving etc. and any improvements will be of direct benefit. The network also
provides considerable income for tourism, local tourist related businesses and an open,

accessible and well promoted network will also bring much needed income into the local
economy.

Financial Implications
14 No financial implications identified
Legal Implications
15 No legal implications
Risk Management
16 A number of improvements have been set out in this report and are currently being
implemented. If there is any delay in the implementation, there is a risk of formal complaints
which will tie up staff time and damage the reputation of the council. There is also a risk that
continued financial budget restrictions will cause the maintenance backlog to increase and the
network to deteriorate further. These risks will be added to the service risk register be
monitored on a regular basis.
Consultees
¢ None for this report
Appendices
e Issues list from Mr. Mckay

Background Papers

¢ None

19



20



dIMmod ublH | ubiH/PoN ybiH | uoisioep Aoljod o1bsjens — pea OH Bulidxe ‘dIMOY d¥epdn pue mainey | LY 2 4V
syjedjoo} apisplal
"SpeOoJ paplodalun |  papJodal 0} Juade(pe speol papJodalun
108dsul ul Juswalinbal oN Jo uonoadsul pue juswabeuew
dWH MO 9]eJ9poN PON/MOT "Jajlew 821nosal pue [euoiiesadQ ayy buipsebau Aoljod mainay | 9d OWWNa
‘(seljlewoue)
¢suoneoidde QININQ Se Jwgns
pue yoieasal 0] 4y H- 924nosal
Aewy ON "pea| 4y 1H ‘Malnal ‘dew aAluap
a)elapo ubiH ajesopoly | Aunniog Aq paianod Aoijod aing UOo Saljeuwloue 8l uoljoe Mainsy | G OWWNa
Sl sIy} ploAe
0] Jeah Jad ¢z 1e panjosal 8q 0} paau
sallewoue 09¢ 69 ‘uonesuadwod
suoneoldde QNINQ Se Hwgns 10 JuswAed Aq pajeisulal aq 0} dARY
pue yoieasal Jno Aled 0} ysim Aew 920z ul paysinbunxa sjybu a1o0jaqg sy}
4V 1H ™4om jo Apoq [enueisgns Op 0} paau pue ‘Iouno) Aq paJsnoasIp
SIY] O} JILIWOI O} S82IN0Sa 8ouapIA8 anp Inoge Buiwod sYONING
dIMOY ybiH/PON 9]eJapoN 9]eJ9poN 8y} aAey Jou op Aswy ‘pes| 4v1H Jo uonensibal yjos a1 sonoesd mainay | $Q OWWNa
‘obeys jusawnoop bBunoddns
SIY} e malAal 0] pasu oN “asodind OWING [NJasn e}l Bupjew 0} MaIA Y)im
10} JI} pue pamainal AjJuaday | juswnoop dep sAlueq JIYSpIojaIaH
POIN/MOT 8]BJISPOI\ MOT/PON "Juswnoop |euoneladQ — Aswy 10 AJO]SIH, JO JUBJUOD MBIASY | € OWNGa
uonoadsul ||Bl8A0 SUO
uey} JayjeJ splodal o1o}sIY O uonoadsul
abe)s sy} e malnal Jo) pasu a|dinw Burinbai osje pue ‘Asnbul
ON -Buuisisn|o yiom jo sajdwexa pauIquod 8uo uey) Jayiel sauinbul
poob Apeal)y "$92In0sal Jo paJapeas Bupsu ‘siaysnio ul uey)
asn ajeldosdde pue Aousiols ylom | Jayiel ‘Alunod Jnoge passpess s,0NING
dIMOY wnipa|y 9)elapo\ a)jeJopoly | Jo Jenew - jeuonelsadQ ‘pea Aswy pue s,0dd 1o Bunjew au Aoljod mainay | zd OWWNa
‘syjuow
Z1 ul ainpaosoud mainal pue sjablel UOI}BPUSWIWOD3 JOYPNY [1DUN0D
paalbe Jojuow 0} DH S| PWWOD uonelapisuod ojui bupye) ‘einpasold
MO 9)elapo\ MOT/PON Aunniog Aq palapisuod Apeally uolleulwIBdp YOWING mainay | 1 OWWNa
syuI éAyiold | ¢peopjaop ilenuajod SJUBWIWIOD SI321JO | UOIILIdPISUOD pue MalAal 10} soido |

21



ssao%04d uoneoldde oG Jo ped Aq paiinbal aq pjnom jey; sjuswnoop aAneniu|
9]eISpOo a]elopo o]elopol\ | Se o|qejieAe Apealje uoneuawnooq aAllewlojul Jo AJljige|ieAne MaIney | Zd ysued
dejy peoy AJunoD uo paplodal jou ale
yolym ing ‘speod ajiym 9’1 ,speol se
way) uo juads Asuow adsueusjuiew pasn Ajulew speoy, se yons ‘papiroid
Aue aney o} Aj@yljun aJe s}pals 10U SBM UOIBULIOJUI YDIYM Inoge
10 1s17 0} suonippe mau Aue sueaw | sAem (0 pue ‘shem pue syjed psidasoy
a]ewl|o J1WOUO02d uaun) "saysued 10N, (9 ‘5,849 B s,44D (e Buiuisouod
SO1 [e00] yum padojaasp aq pjnoo uaye) aq Jybno uonoe Jeym Japisuod aAnenRIu|
dIMOY wnipsiy ybIH ybIH Jey} Buiyyewos aq pino) - 4y 1H Jejnoijied Ul pue ‘saji4 ysiled Mainay | Ld ysued
‘passalppe
Buiaq si pue Jeyew |euonjeiado ‘dew aAljIUYSq UO
9]eISpPOoIA o]eIopo Q]eIopo S| suonoNJIsqo wue) Buo | suononyisqo wus) Buoj al uonoe MaInay | SN | @oueudUIRy
paulejuiew Ajjnjmejun suoionJ}sqo
10 pPajonJIsqo Ajjnymejun jou ale
syb1 papiosaIuNn aINSUL 0} ‘SjUBWd)R)S
us)lIM 8y} Uo suoie)iwl ayewnibs) se
‘saunjongls Bunsixe 1e Joo| pue 3oeq papJodal Jou aJe jey ‘shkem pue syjed
06 0} $821n0Sal O "pasioyine $S0J0B $81N}ONJIS Jayjo pue ‘sajeb
dINH/ ale saInjonJ)s ainjny ||e aINsua ‘sg|iis Jo Juswaoe|dal / 8douUBUSBlUIBW
dIMOY MOT/PON ybiH 9)eJapol\ 0} 9oe|d ul 1nd Apeauje sainpasold | Buipisebal ainpaosoid pue Aoijjod mainay | ZIN | @doueuajulep
‘Aem Jo yjed syl maiA pue yem
pInoo J0108dsu| “*9°| ‘UuoieuwJUOD JBpIo
papie aAey 0} Jybnoy} si pue ‘\\oXd e
sem paploap Aayl aouo sAem pue syjed
"obels sIy} JB MaIABl 0} | Jeajd 0} pasn DDASH "PaWIIJUOD JBpIo
paau ON "4y H wouij papaau ndul | |l AAOHd B SI paullwIa}ap SI 90U0 sAem
MO MO MO ON “J8new jeuonesadO — ANV | pue syied Bulies|o jou jo Aoljod mainay | LA | @oueuajuley
[n}asn 4y1H wouyj Indu| “syued
Jed apisAunod jo Juswabeuew sjulod maln
pue AloAljap 10} SaAljeuls)e pue o1uoid ‘Buiyted Aiunod paulejuiew dimoy
dIMOY alelopo alelapol\ alelopo\ 1e Bujoo] ‘uoisioap |jeuonesad | 1oUno) jo Buisiuaape aJ Aoljod mainey | €Y Q 4V
dIMoy
wnipsjy POIAI/MOT UBIH/PON puey uj 4V TH bBuisiyeApe a1 8o)joesd MaIney | 2o ® dv1
10 pus je uibag 0} dIMOY
JO MaIASY "4y TH WoJj Indul yim '110¢ dIMoy

22



ybBIH/POIN ybiH ybBIH/POIN Aunniog Aq paianod Adijod usiin) | padeunsun Saljewoue a1 UoljoB MaIASY | /N | pasepunsun
speoJ AJunod speou
ybIH/PON PON/MOT UBIH/POIN psdeunsun apnjoul 0] 4IMOY pusiXg | 9N | padelnsun
so|diound
Aemybiy ueyy Jayies so|diourid ppOYd
0} Buiploooe pabeuew ji 8sn ueLysanba
Jo} 9|geyns sajnol Jo %9¢ Buippe Asyy
‘s, 1 YOSg pasn |[om pue syjed uegin
1o Juswebeuew sAemybiy 1o} abueyoxs
ul MOYd Ag pabeuew Japaq aq pjnom
4V 1H woJy indur ypm | 31 J9pISUod 0} ‘speod AJunod pasepnsun speod
dIMOY ybBIH/POoIN 9]eIopOoN yBIH/POIN Ma3IAaI dIMOY 10 Med se pea| OH Jo uswabeuew shkemybiH mainay | GN | pasemnsun
UOISIOA
N0 paled Joindwoo 0} dew peod Ajunoo Jaded
Buiaqg Ajjuaiind mainal — shemybiy woJ} S}9a1)S 9jeAlld Jnoge uoiewlojul speou
dNH MO 9] IapPOI\ MO Aq pa| Buiaq JapeN jeuonesadQ Jajsuel} 0} ainjiey Juasedde mainey | N | pesepnsun
1IN0 pauled dew peou
Buieq Ajjuaiino mainal — skemybiy A1unod ay) 01 speod Alunod paplodalun speo.
dINH ybiH/pPoN 2)elapol\ ybBiH/pPoN Aq ps| Buiaq Jeney jeuonesad Buippe 4o} ainpadosd malney | €N | pedemdnsun
1IN0 palled
Buiaqg Apusaiind mainal — skemybiy speoJ AJunoo paosepnsun speo.
dH ybBiH/PoIN a]elopo yBIH/POIN Aq pa| Buiaq JapeN jeuonesadQ Jo Buiubis Buipiebau Aoljod mainey zn | ZN | pesepnsun
pajonJjsqo
1IN0 pauled | aJe Yyolym Inoge uoieuliojul apinoid jou
Buriaq Ajjuanino mainas — shkemybiy |  seaop Aoijod yussaud 69 ‘speos Ajunod speou
dH ybBIH/POoIN 9]eIopOoN yBIH/POIN Aq pa| Buiaq Japep jeuoneiadQ | padeunsun Joj Ao1jod uonoadsu] mMaIAeyY | LN | padepnsun
Ayoeded Alosiape ul uey)
JBYJO YJOM JO BaJE SIY} Ul POAJOAUI (sx99m om) Auans ysued auo aq
awo0929aq 0] s821nosal Aswy pinom 9z0z Aq saysiied oGz @19|dwod
pue DH JUSIoINSU| "Ul PAAJOAUI 0} S1ay}o Aq auop i) splooas Aemybiy
awo2aq p|no9 s |1ounod ysied pue pnold Bunejdwod pue Buosyd aAneIuy|
dIMOY 9]eJspoy uybiH UbiH | yoiym joefoid aq pjno) "pes| 4y 1H ul Aejd p|nod sayslied 8|oJ MalndyY | €d ysiied

(uonesapisuod 4o} 81| B pasiel aAey
|) spJooal Aemybiy pue pNO¥Hd 819|dwod
pue }28yd 03 ‘slayjo Jo ‘sayslied

23



N0 paLed speoJ Ajunoo

Buiaqg Apusiind mainal — skemybiy pasepnsun speol

dWH wnipay ybiIH/PON 9]eJ9poN Aq pa| Buiag Jene |euoneladQ SS0.0E “'0)0 ‘sa)eb al uoiloe MaINSY | 6N | pedepnsun
‘passaippe buiaq si pue Japew

|euonesado speoy Ajuno) padseunsun uo speou

MOT/POIN 9]eJapoN MOT/PON S| suonjonJ}sgqo wud) Buo | suononiisqo wus) buoj al uonoe mainsy | 8N | pademnsun
‘(sellewoue)
suoneoldd QWING Se Jwgns
pue yoieasal 0] 4y H- 924nosal

Aswy ON "pe9| 4V 1H - Malnal speoy Ajuno) speo.

24



AGENDA ITEM 7

Herefordshire

Council
MEETING: ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
DATE: 28 FEBRUARY 2011

TITLE OF REPORT: | ROAD OVER RAIL BRIDGES

PORTFOLIO AREA: | HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORTATION

CLASSIFICATION: Open
Wards Affected

County-wide

Purpose

To inform the Committee on the number and condition of road over rail bridges, the
responsibilities for maintenance, and the means of determining that maintenance.

Recommendation(s)

THAT:  the report is noted

Key Points Summary

In Herefordshire there are 32 bridges over live rail (Network Rail have maintenance
responsibility for 29 and Herefordshire Council has maintenance responsibility for 3
road and 2 footbridges). There are 31 bridges over disused rail lines (the British Rail
Residuary Board being responsible for 26 of these and Herefordshire Council has
maintenance responsibility for 5, of which 2 are footbridges).

All bridges for which Herefordshire Council is responsible are managed in accordance
with national standards to determine their condition, that they are safe for traffic and to
identify maintenance works.

Network Rail and British Rail Residuary Board state that their bridges are managed in
accordance with their national standards.

All 59 road bridges have been assessed as being capable of taking full highway
loading, while 4 road bridges are classed as substandard. Footbridges are not included.

All road over rail and disused rail bridges that are classed as substandard are managed
in accordance with national standards to ensure that the bridges are safe for use.

All road over rail bridges have been assessed, with Network Rail, to the national
standard for the assessment of risk of accidental incursion of highway vehicles onto the
railway. Risks have been assessed as low and the programme of mitigation measures

Further information on the subject of this report is available from David Harvey,
Technical Director, Consulting Highways, Amey tel 01432 845900

$ohjal2sg.doc 26Nov08

25



is in preparation together with consideration of accident records to reduce the risks, to
as low as reasonably possible with low cost schemes.

Herefordshire Council currently has no ongoing issues with Network Rail associated
with land/fences at bridges other than those associated with the review of risk
accidental obstruction of the railway by road vehicles.

Introduction and Background

1

In Herefordshire there are 34 bridges over live rail (Network Rail have maintenance
responsibility for 27; Herefordshire Council has maintenance responsibility for 5 and
Highways Agency for 2). There are 31 bridges over disused rail lines with the British Rail
Residuary Board being responsible for these.

Amey Herefordshire provide the Council with all bridge maintenance services and have
the responsibility for ensuring the Council meets its obligation in this respect.

Table of bridges by owner and type with totals

Bridges over live rail

Footbridges over live rail owned by Herefordshire 2No.
Highway bridges carrying road over live rail owned by Herefordshire 3No.
Highway bridges over live rail owned and maintained by Network Rail 25No.
Footbridges over live rail owned and maintained by Network Rail 2No.
Highway Bridges owned and maintained by Highways Agency 2No.

Bridges over disused rail

Footbridges over disused rail owned by Herefordshire 2No.

Highway bridges carrying road over disused rail owned by Herefordshire 3No.

Highway bridges carrying road over disused rail owned by BRB (Residuary) Ltd. | 26No.
(Previously British Railways Board)

3 All bridges for which Herefordshire Council is responsible are inspected in accordance

with “Highway Structures, A Code of Practice”, the national standard for the
determination of their condition, ensuring they are safe for traffic and for the
identification of maintenance works.

Network Rail and British Rail Residuary Board state that their bridges are managed in
accordance with their national standards. Network Rail responsibilities are defined in
The Railway Bridges (Load Bearing Standards) (England and Wales) Order 1972 (Sl
1072 No. 1705),

All road over rail bridges have been assessed with Network Rail to “Managing the
accidental obstruction of the railway by road vehicles”, the national standard for

26



10

11

12

13

assessing the risk of accidental incursion of highway vehicles onto the railway.

Key Considerations

Inspections on bridges for which Herefordshire Council has responsibility are
undertaken every two years, with a detailed inspection every 6 years in accordance with
national guidelines. The inspection, covering all structural and other elements of the
bridge, identifies the condition of each element and the overall condition of the bridge.
Maintenance works or further inspection is determined from these inspections.

Inspections by Network Rail and British Rail Residuary Board for their bridges is every
two years, with a detailed inspection every 6 years in accordance with national
guidelines.

There are inspections, known as safety inspections, on all Network Rail and British Rail
Residuary Board bridges by Amey every two years. These inspections fulfil the duty of
care required by the Highway Authority and are to confirm, at the time of inspection,
that the bridge is safe for use.

Assessments have been carried out on all bridges. A total of 55 bridges have been
assessed as being capable of taking full highway loading (including the three bridges
for which Herefordshire Council has responsibility), while 4 bridges are classed as
substandard.

All road over rail bridges that are classed substandard are managed in accordance with
national standards to ensure that the bridges are safe for use. All bridges in this
category, when last inspected, were safe for use.

Where a substandard structure also has a capacity below that defined in “The Railway
Bridges (Load Bearing Standards) (England and Wales) Order 1972” responsibility for
strengthening is with Network Rail or British Rail Residuary Board as appropriate.

Risks of highway vehicle incursion on the railway have been assessed as low and the
programme of mitigation measures is in preparation.

The four bridges assessed as below full highway loading are as follows:-

BB0234, Woodleigh Road (Railway)

Assessed capacity - 7.5t gvw or Fire Engine group 1(FE1)

A highway bridge owned and maintained by Herefordshire carrying road over disused
rail.

It is currently protected by a signed 7.5t weight limit and is managed under the strategy

for management of substandard structures in the County. It carries the unclassified road
U67221 over a footpath. No works other than monitoring are currently planned.

27



BR5063, College Rd Railway Bridge

Assessed capacity - 7.5t gvw

The bridge's capacity is below the legal obligations of Network Rail (A defined in The
Transport Act 1968 (Part VIII Bridges and level Crossings etc) and loading further
clarified in The Railway Bridges (Load Bearing Standards) (England and Wales) Order
1972 (SI 1072 No. 1705), HMSO. The condition of fencing on the east side of the
approach to the bridge has been raised with Network Rail and Amey Herefordshire are
in discussion to ensure this is improved on this main approach to the city centre.

This is highway over live rail bridge owned and maintained by Network Rail currently
assessed as having a capacity of 7.5t gvw and is protected by signs stating this .

Network Rail is obliged to restore the capacity to that of its obligations as defined in the
act. These obligations are in general to maintain a capacity to the codes current at the
time of the Act (1968), this is generally taken to be approximately 24Tons, however
because current codes are more onerous, bridges may have a capacity less than this
and still meet the Network Rail obligations. Under such a scheme the contribution from
Herefordshire Council is likely to be relatively small. However, if Herefordshire Council
were to require either a greater capacity than Network Rail's obligations or alterations to
the current alignment or any similar alterations then the burden of costs falling on
Herefordshire Council will be significantly increased and may be the majority of the
costs. Knowledge of the structural condition of the bridge is limited but it can
reasonably be assumed that works will be required on structural grounds in
approximately 5 years though if the Council is content for works to be to Network Rail's
obligations then programming lies with Network Rail. Negotiations with Network Rail are
being undertaken on behalf of the Council by Amey Herefordshire to bring forward
necessary works to meet highway requirements.

BR5037, Old Castle Railway

Assessed capacity - 7.5t gvw or Fire Engine group 1(FE1) at edge beams (17t on inner
beams). The bridge's capacity is greater than the legal obligations of BRB (Residuary)
Ltd.

A highway bridge carrying road over disused rail (Hay and Brecon line) owned by BRB
(Residuary) Ltd.

This bridge is currently being considered for safety improvements, including a Road
Safety Audit in respect of parapet protection. The long term solution is to be considered
in 2011/12 in liaison with BRB to determine the best value strategy to manage this sub
standard structure.

BR5067, Huntington Court Railway

Assessed capacity - 17t gvw. The bridge's capacity is greater than the legal obligations
of BRB (Residuary) Ltd.

A highway bridge carrying road over disused rail (Hay and Brecon line) owned by BRB
(Residuary) Ltd.

28



This bridge is currently being considered for safety improvements, including a Road
Safety Audit in respect of parapet protection. The long term solution is to be considered
in 2011/12 in liaison with BRB to determine the best value strategy to manage this sub
standard structure.

Conclusion
14 This report sets out the robust approach taken to the important duty to effectively

maintain highways bridges in partnership with Network Rail and British Rail Residuary
Board. Members’ comments are invited.

Community Impact

15 The appropriate capacity of a bridge and its availability for use supports the well being
of that community.

Financial Implications

16 All inspections and maintenance works are carried out within existing budgets.

Legal Implications
17 The management of highway structures in accordance with national code of practice
does not prevent prosecution but not to carryout management to the code of practice

could lead to prosecution, exposure to Civil compensation claims and loss of reputation
to Herefordshire.

Risk Management

18 The Code of Practice for the Management of Highway Structures is a good practice
guide to the management of highway structures. The code sets out the procedures,
processes and standards to be adopted in order to manage highway structures
efficiently and effectively for the safety of the public.

19 Managing the accidental obstruction of the railway by road vehicles, is guidance with a
risk based methodology for assessing the risk of incursion of highway vehicles onto the

railway. Undertaking assessments at all rail bridge sites in accordance with the
methodology set out in this document minimises the risks of such an incident.

Consultees
20 None
Appendices
None

Background Papers

None

29



30



AGENDA ITEM 8

Herefordshire

Council
MEETING: ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
DATE: 28 FEBRUARY 2011

TITLE OF REPORT: | PRELIMINARY FLOOD RISK ASSESSMENT

PORTFOLIO AREA: Highways and Transportation,
Environment

CLASSIFICATION: Open
Wards Affected

County-wide

Purpose
To:

¢ Introduce the requirements of the Flood Risk Regulations 2009 and the Flood and
Water Management Act 2010 in regard to the development of a Local Flood Risk
Management Strategy for Herefordshire; and in particular the requirement for
Herefordshire council as the Lead Local Flood Authority to prepare a Preliminary
Flood Risk Assessment.

e To seek the Committee’s views on the modification of the indicative national
assessment of flood risk in Herefordshire; and

e To seek the Committee’s guidance on the local significance of the criteria used in the
preparation of the Preliminary Flood Risk Assessment Report, and in the
subsequent development of Herefordshire’s Local Flood Risk Management Strategy.

Key Decision

This is a Key Decision because it is likely to be significant in terms of its effect on
communities living or working in Herefordshire in an area comprising one or more wards.

It was not included in the Forward Plan, however inclusion in the agenda gives the required
notice in accordance with Section 15 of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Access to Information) Regulations 2000.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Clive Hall, Highway Network Manager on (01432) 260786

Preliminary Flood Risk Assessment report.doc 2

31



Recommendations

THAT Scrutiny Committee:

(a) Propose that the indicative national assessment of flood risk in
Herefordshire is not amended; and

(b) Supports the preparation of the Preliminary Flood Risk
Assessment Report in accordance with the Guidance provided to
all Lead Local Flood Authorities by DEFRA, and provides its
views on the local significance of the criteria contained therein.

Key Points Summary

The deadline for the submission to the Environment Agency of the Preliminary Flood
Risk Assessment Report is the 22" June 2011

The Preliminary Flood Risk Assessment Report will be made available to the public
by 22 December 2011.

The indicative national flood risk map prepared by the Environment Agency provides
a consistent assessment of flood risk across England and Wales. The indicative flood
risk map identifies nationally significant flood risk areas.

Drawing on local knowledge of flood risk it has been determined that there are no
nationally significant flood risk areas in Herefordshire.

A consistent approach is required nationally for the assessment of flood risk and this
is supported by detailed guidance. The Preliminary Flood Risk Assessment (PFRA)
will identify if from local knowledge there are Flood Risk Areas within Herefordshire.
The identification will be based on the identification of significant harmful
consequences on human health, economic activity and the environment.

Alternative Options

1 The committees proposes that Herefordshire Council as the Lead Local Authority
(LLFA) draws on local knowledge to determine amendments to the flood risk areas.

Reasons for Recommendations

2 The indicative flood risk map has been prepared to identify national areas of flood risk.
This decision, not to amend the flood risk map, allows Herefordshire Council as the
LLFA to develop flood mitigation strategies and flood risk management plans that are
the most appropriate for this county.

3 The guidance on the significance of criteria for flood risk ensures the strategies to be
developed will be appropriate for Herefordshire.

Introduction and Background

4 The Flood Risk Regulations 2009 (the Regulations) implement the European Floods

32



Directive 2007/60/EC. This provides a consistent approach to managing flood risk
across Europe. Herefordshire Council is the Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) for
Herefordshire. Under the Regulations (and in line with responsibilities under the Flood
and Water Management Act 2010 (the Act)) the LLFA is responsible for managing local
flood risk in its area.

The approach the government has adopted for the management of flood risk starts with
a Preliminary Flood Risk Assessment (PFRA) Report. The report is an initial screening
to review historical and future flood risk to determine flood risk areas.

The deadline for the completion of the PFRA report is the 22™ June 2011. The report
will then be reviewed by the Environment Agency (EA).

The PFRA to be prepared by all LLFAs are not required to cover flooding from the sea,
main rivers and reservoirs, the assessment of these risks will be lead by the EA. The
PFRA should not include for flooding from blocked sewers or burst water mains, but
sewer surcharge due to heavy rainfall events, or the like must be included for.

Key Considerations

8

10

The PFRA Report is required to cover the following aspects:

e Governance by Herefordshire Council for the management of local flood risk,

e Partnership and communications with partners for the management of local flood
risk

e Past floods — listing of past floods and their consequences

e Future floods — identification of the broad areas at risk of flooding in the future,
and the consequences of that flooding, based on indicative flood risk areas
provided by the Environment Agency (EA).

e The report will contain map(s) of past floods and a summary table of
consequences. These will provide a summary of all readily available information
on past floods. This will be used in the development of local strategies.

e The EA have provided an indicative flood risk map for each LLFA area based on
national data. To ensure a consistent and proportionate approach DEFRA has
identified significant criteria and thresholds to define flood risk areas.

The EA has applied these criteria and thresholds to produce indicative Flood Risk
Areas. These areas are based on nationally available data. It is important that this is
reviewed by the LLFA for the Report. The indicators and threshold values that have
been used to determine the indicative Flood Risk Areas are included in Appendix 1 to
this report.

The methodology adopted by the EA was to inspect 1 km grid squares for local flood
risk and to seek clusters of flood risk in order to identify nationally significant flood risk
areas. This process has identified 8 areas in England and 5 in Wales, none include
Herefordshire. The nature of the national methodology is such that it is areas of major
population that have been identified with nationally significant flood risk. As a result of
the methodology these indicative national flood risk maps prepared by the EA do
provide a consistent assessment of flood risk across England and Wales and do identify
nationally significant flood risk areas.

33



11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

The review of the PFRA undertaken by the EA will aim to ensure that the national
method for identifying Flood Risk Areas has been applied appropriately and consistently
by LLFA’s in England and Wales. The EA will publish all Preliminary Flood Risk
Assessment Reports and Flood Risk Areas by 22 December 2011 before making them
available to the European Commission.

In line with EA recommendations the PFRA Report will be available to the public by 22
December 2011.

The EA’s review will focus on the Flood Risk Areas particularly where these have been
amended. They will check that any changes are justified and nationally consistent. To
promote consistency, the Department for Environment Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA)
have published detailed guidance and alongside the details of the indicators and
threshold values to determine Flood Risk Areas (Appendix 1), A series of other factors
for LLFAs to consider for nominating new or expanded Flood Risk Areas are detailed.
These consider further information on:

e the risk to human health, including the vulnerability of sites such as caravan
parks to flood risk and the impact on critical infrastructure such as schools,
hospitals, nursing homes, power and water services;

e economic factors, such as agricultural areas, road and rail links; and
Environmental factors, such as designated sites, heritage sites and pollution.

As the LLFA, Herefordshire Council may draw on local knowledge to review the
indicative flood risk map prepared by the Environment Agency and determine if it wishes
to amend the flood risk areas. Reasons for amending the indicative flood risk areas
could include knowledge of geography, past flooding, future flooding. Unless the
reasons for amendment are compelling the Environment Agency does not recommend
amendments.

If accepted by the EA there are no financial benefits from amendment to the indicative
flood risk areas. A decision not to amend the flood risk map allows Herefordshire
Council as the LLFA to develop flood mitigation strategies and flood risk management
plans that are the most appropriate for this county.

The EA review panel will make recommendations to the relevant Regional Flood
Defence Committee (Midlands RFDC) for endorsement. Following consideration by the
RFDC the final stage of the EA review will be signing off by the relevant EA director.

The PFRA stage of the Regulations will provide a flood risk assessment for local flood
risk strategy in the Act. LLFA’s without Flood Risk Areas will be able to choose the
management approach they feel is most appropriate for the area. LLFA’s are
encouraged to consider the full range of local flood risk across their area.

Preliminary Flood Risk Assessment (PFRA) will identify local flood risk areas and be
based on the identification of significant harmful consequences on human health,
economic activity and the environment.

Community Impact

20

Flood events have a significant impact on the health, welfare and economic viability of
our communities and the environment in which the live, work and travel.

34



Financial Implications

21 There are no direct costs to the proposals. Governance, Partnership building, the
development of flood mitigation strategies and flood risk management plans is contained
within existing budgets. The government has provided area grant funding for 2011/12
and 2012/13 for duties contained within the Flood and Water Management Act 2010.
This falls within the new duties.

Funding is not limited by the recommendations

Legal Implications

22 The Regulations require the submission of the PFRA Report by 22 June 2011.

Risk Management

23 Under the Regulations Herefordshire Council as the LLFA for Herefordshire is
responsible for managing local flood risk in the county. Herefordshire Council as the
LLFA is required to review the PFRA in accordance with its own internal processes. The

purpose of such a review is to ensure that as a LLFA it is satisfied that its products are
fit for purpose in meeting the Regulations.

Consultees
24 The EA has been consulted on whether any area in Herefordshire will meet the

significance criteria set out above. The EA has indicated that no area will meet the
criteria.

Appendices

25 DEFRA Indicators and threshold levels to determine flood risk areas.

Background Papers
Herefordshire Strategic Flood Risk Assessment

Selecting and reviewing Flood Risk Areas for local sources of flooding — Guidance to Lead
Local Flood Authorities. As published by DEFRA

35



36



Indicators and threshold values to determine Flood Risk Areas

Indicative Number of people |Set at 30,000 (England), 5,000 (Wales) within a Nationally
Flood Risk cluster where risk is most concentrated.
Areas (based on number
of residential
properties x 2.34)
Critical services |“Nominal threshold” 150 (England) 25 (Wales) Nationally
(including schools, |although number of people is the deciding
hospitals, nursing |threshold for indicative Flood Risk Areas.
homes, power and
water services)
LLFA proposed [Number of people |New Flood Risk Areas could be identified on the Locally
new or (based on number |basis of being at equivalent risk to the indicative
expanded of residential Flood Risk Areas. Annex A describes criteria which
Flood Risk properties x 2.34) |may be used to determine this.
Areas
Critical services — |Locally held information might provide a more Locally
(including schools, |accurate assessment of the number of people who
hospitals, nursing |depend on specific critical services. Although new
homes, power and |Flood Risk Areas are unlikely to be identified on the
water services) basis of critical services alone, local information
might suggest that a Flood Risk Areas might be
expanded.
Indicative Non-residential “Nominal threshold” of 3,000 (England) 500 Nationally
Flood Risk properties (Wales) although number of people is the deciding
Areas (including shops threshold for indicative Flood Risk Areas.
and businesses).
LLFA Non-residential Areas could be identified on the basis of being at  |Locally
proposed new |properties equivalent risk to the indicative Flood Risk Areas.
or expanded (including shops Generally business properties represent less than
Flood Risk and businesses). 2% of total properties in Flood Risk Areas so it is
Areas unlikely that additional non-residential properties
alone will lead to new Flood Risk Areas.
Agricultural land |Consequences of flooding to agricultural land from |Locally
(e.g. area of land local flood risks are unlikely to identify new Flood
(hectares) based on |Risk Areas but may contribute to Flood Risk Areas
agricultural grade) [selected on other indicators.
Roads and rail Consequences from local sources of flood risk to  [Locally
(length in km) roads and rail are unlikely to lead to new Flood Risk
Areas being identified, but may contribute to Flood
Risk Areas which are identified on the basis of
other indicators.

37




Indicators and threshold values to determine Flood Risk Areas

38



AGENDA ITEM 9

Herefordshire

Council
MEETING: ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
DATE: 28 FEBRUARY 2011

TITLE OF REPORT: | INTRODUCTION TO EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANNING
FOR FLOODING IN HEREFORDSHIRE

REPORT BY: Assistant Director Public Health

CLASSIFICATION: OPEN
Wards Affected — County-wide

Purpose

To brief and provide information to the Committee on the Herefordshire Multi-Agency Flood Plan
(MAFP) and the development of a Generic Reservoir Inundation Off-site Plan. Furthermore, to draw
the committee’s attention to the ongoing work programme that will enhance and develop our
emergency preparedness for flooding; acknowledging the resources being committed by the Joint
Emergency Planning Unit (JEPU).

Recommendations
THAT:

(a) Note the development of the Herefordshire MAFP and the Generic Reservoir
Inundation Off-Site Plan;

(b) Note the continued work of the JEPU to maintain and enhance these plans.
Key Points Summary

. The JEPU has produced the Herefordshire MAFP in line with: the Civil Contingencies Act
2004 (CCA) duties required of Category 1 emergency responders; the guidance provided by
the Environment Agency (EA) and DEFRA; and, the recommendations made within the Pitt’
Review.

. Local Authorities are the lead responders in relation to multi-agency planning for severe
weather emergencies.

o The Plan has been exercised on a multi-agency basis and scored (against DEFRA
requirements) by the Environment Agency (EA) and our Multi-Agency Partners and is
considered "very satisfactory"; the EA are considering using it as their exemplar for other
counties to follow. The Chief Executive endorsed the plan on 23 February 2011.

' Lessons from the 2007 Floods, An independent review by Sir Michael Pitt, (The Pitt Review), December 2007.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Rob Lewis — Emergency Planning Officer on (01432) 261828

39



The JEPU have contributed to the development of a West Mercia Local Resilience Forum
(WMLRF) generic Reservoir Flood Inundation Off-Site Plan that incorporates specific hazard
mapping for Herefordshire.

Alternative Options

1.

Not Applicable - this is a legal compliance process.

Reasons for Recommendations

2.

To inform, promote and give assurance that adoption of these key flooding response plans
(which follow national statutory and non-statutory guidance) provide a vehicle for training,
validation and audit. These plans also provide the stimulus to enhance Category 1 & 2°
partner engagement, ensuring critical infrastructure interdependences are considered in
response planning.

Introduction and Background

Increasing Risks from River and Surface Water Flooding - Drivers for Emergency
Preparedness

3.

With increasingly accepted evidence that the climate of the UK is changing, Herefordshire
along with the rest of Western UK, is projected to experience increasingly wetter winters
raising the risks associated with river and surface water flooding. Indeed, the recent
Strategic Defence and Security Review placed flooding as one of the top three national risks.

Of the 92 recommendations made within the Pitt Review, recommendation 41 became a driver
for an improved coordinated response at a local resilience forum level. Pitt observed that
although the 2007 floods stretched multi-agency resources, improved command and control at
Strategic (Gold) and Tactical (Silver) levels would maximise response efficiency. Pitt also
suggested that upper tier local authorities (LAs) were best placed to assess the potential
impact of local flooding based on previous experience, assessments by their staff and with the
advice of other emergency responders. Therefore, upper tier LAs should lead the triggering of
local multi-agency arrangements. Consequently, within the Flood and Water Management Act
2010 and the Flood Risk Regulations 2009, Government identified LAs as the lead responders
in relation to: multi-agency planning for severe weather emergencies; triggering multi-agency
arrangements for warning and informing; and, carrying out local impact assessments.

The Herefordshire MAFP has been drawn up by the JEPU in compliance with guidance3 and
has been peer reviewed by WMLRF partner agencies (e.g. Police, Ambulance, Fire, EA) and
considered “very satisfactory” when scored against the DEFRA MAFP Checklist.

Risks from Reservoir Flood Inundation

2 As defined within the Civil Contingencies Act 2004, Schedule 1.

3 Part 3, Section 12 of the National Flood Emergency Framework www.defra.gov.uk/environment/flooding/documents/planning/emergency-
framework-290710.pdf

40



Reservoir Safety Legislation dates back to the Reservoirs (Safety Provisions) Act 1930%. The
Act was superseded by the Reservoirs Act 1975 which currently provides the legal framework
for ensuring the safe operation of large raised reservoirs, i.e. greater than 25,000 M® capacity.
The risk from catastrophic reservoir flooding is very low and putting the risk in context,
between 2004 and 2008 there were 14 incidents that were deemed to be serious®, the most
high profile being the Ulley reservoir in Rotherham which was at risk of collapse following
rainfall damage during the summer of 2007. This incident lead to the evacuation of some
1000 people from their homes and closed the M1 motorway. The Pitt Review highlighted the
need to improve reservoir emergency preparedness, recommending that reservoir flood
inundation maps be prepared allowing local resilience forums to prepare generic emergency
off-site plans and meet their duties under the CCA.

The responsibility to maintain a register of large raised reservoirs transferred from LAs to the
EA under the Water Act 2003; LAs still have a duty to register those reservoirs for which they
are an ‘undertaker’. In addition, the Flood and Water Management Act 2010 makes a number
of amendments to the Reservoirs Act 1975° including:

. Reducin% the capacity at which reservoirs will be regulated from 25,000M° to
10,000M7;

. All undertakers with reservoirs over 10,000M° are to register their reservoirs with the
EA;

. All undertakers are to prepare a reservoir flood plan.

In response to the Pitt recommendations and DEFRA requirements, a country-wide survey
was carried out by the EA on all high risk and large raised reservoirs. For Herefordshire, this
survey confirmed that there were no high risk reservoirs but offered inundation mapping and
risk assessments for 9 large raised reservoirs.

Key Considerations

The Herefordshire MAFP

9.

10.

11.

Part 1 & 2 of the MAFP focuses on the risks associated with fluvial (river flooding). Part 3
offers an initial assessment of pluvial (surface water) flooding in Herefordshire and, in so
doing, references the work undertaken within the Herefordshire Strategic Flood Risk
Assessment’. For the purposes of risk assessment, the plan divides the county into 10 river
catchment areas (see Appendix 1), these catchments are then further subdivided by Parish or
Parish Group, allowing community based risk assessments to be conducted.

The MAFP details how all responding Category 1 & 2 emergency responding agencies will
work together on an agreed coordinated response to severe flooding and uses existing multi-
agency Strategic (Gold) and Tactical (Silver) command and control arrangements.

Key elements of the plan include:
. The vulnerable areas at risk from different forms of flooding at Parish or Parish Group

level, including properties, critical infrastructure, health economy assets as well as
vulnerable groups such as schools and residential care/nursing homes;

4 Following a number of reservoir failures in the 1920’s which resulted in loss of life.

5 Requiring the emergency drawdown of water to affect repair.

6 Secondary legislation will be required before these amendments can come into force and at this time there is no requirement for
undertakers to complete an on-site emergency plan, however it remains best practice to do so.

7 Local Development Framework-Strategic Flood Risk Assessment, 2009.

41



12.

. How the plan will be activated through Met Office/EA intelligence and actions required
against the new EA Flood codes;

. The roles and responsibilities of partner agencies at certain trigger points;
. Links and interdependencies of other emergency response arrangements held across
all partners.

The MAFP has been validated in “Exercise UNITE”, a Herefordshire multi-agency flood
exercise held in Nov 2010. It will be further evaluated as a tactical tool during the national
strategic exercise “WATERMARK” on 8 Mar 2011.

The Generic West Mercia Local Resilience Forum Reservoir Inundation Off-Site Plan

13.

14.

The Reservoir Inundation Off-Site Plan provides a framework to facilitate a co-ordinated multi-
agency response to the off-site consequence of a potential or actual dam breach at a
reservoir. This may be either within West Merica, or from a dam in a neighbouring region
whose water course provides a path to inundate West Mercia.

It aims to ensure that local emergency responders are able to make a swift and effective
response to any reservoir emergency and covers activation, alerting (warning & informing)
and command and control arrangements during the response phase. For example, it outlines
the type of response (e.g. rescue, setting up Rest Centres, etc) which may be necessary
during a reservoir emergency and the facilities and resources which would be available to do
so. Although a generic response plan, it contains specific hazard mapping relating to the
Herefordshire.

Further work and ongoing enhancement of planning arrangements

15.

The following work programme and plan enhancements are required/ongoing:

. Currently, the MAFP does not cover flooding risks from foul sewage, burst water
mains, canals or ground water. Specific response arrangements will be incorporated
into successive plan iterations in accordance with Flood Risk Regulations 2009
compliance;

. Development of a Tactical Flood Advisor training programme to embed the plan across
partner agencies;

. The recent issue of EA surface water flood mapping data allows for more detailed
surface water risk assessments to be carried out at Parish/Parish Group level;

. Collaborative working/research with the EA in the development of a flood visualisation
tool for Herefordshire — improving warning and informing protocols;

. Development and delivery of a local multi-agency table exercise to validate the Generic
Reservoir Inundation Off-Site Plan.

Community Impact

16.

Information at community level was sought during the development of the MAFP through a
Parish questionnaire. The plan has incorporated local intelligence for those Parishes that
responded. In addition the JEPU, in support of the Sustainable Communities Directorate and
the Herefordshire Association of Local Councils, has developed a community resilience

42



coordinator training package and template tool.

17. This package, which incorporates EA best practice community flood planning advice, is
designed as a non-prescriptive support tool for communities/Parish Councils who wish to take
part in the Herefordshire community resilience planning programme. The programme
outcomes will provide improved community resilience, promote community risk awareness
and enhance the links between communities and emergency responders.

Financial Implications

18. In order to undertake the work referred to in paragraph 15, there will be associated costs.
With JEPU funding maintained at existing levels, these costs will be met from within existing
budgets.

Legal Implications
19. The undertaking of this work is a legal requirement under the Civil Contingencies Act 2004.

Risk Management

20. The recent Strategic Defence and Security Review identified flooding as one of the top 3
domestic risks. The development of these plans help to mitigate this risk.

Consultees

21. West Mercia Local Resilience Forum partners have been fully consulted in the development of
these plans.

Appendices

22. Appendix 1 offers a map of Herefordshire divided into 10 river catchments.

Background Papers

e None.

43



Appendix 1. Designation of MAFP river catchment areas

River Catchment Areas
by Parish Group T

Scale 1: 200,000
Herefordshire KT Sarvices, Tharn Oifice C i
Hisbmi u:'ir‘muu.':w;:fmrm
Council Herefordshire Husrelond, M2 BT,
Tal 01432 250160
Wseking tguthar for e penpls of Hesslesdihin Email; halpdes k@ harafordshire. oo, uk

This map 15 reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance
Surwey on behall of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationeny Cffice £ Crown copyright.

Unauthorised reproductien infringes Crewn Copyright and may lead 1o prosecution
o civil pracesdings, 100024168, (2010

Rivir Catchrmeni Data supplied by Environmen Agency

i |. e
2 (downstream of Lugd
o y 4 i Lﬂrlnd‘ rome

;

(downs lnm'ﬁ.l.uﬂl

|
River Catchment Areas f

Arrow

Frome

Leadon

Luga (Lower)

Luga (Lower) and Frome

Lugg (Upper)

Monnoe

Teme (Lower}

- Teme (Lower) and Frome
Teme (Upper)
Wye (downstream of Lugg)
Wye (downstream of Luga) and Frome

| Wye {upstream of Lugg)

J:_:_,B Parish or Parish Croup Boundary

OJODCENEONEEER

44



AGENDA ITEM 10

Herefordshire

Council
MEETING: ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
DATE: 28 FEBRUARY 2011

TITLE OF REPORT: | UPDATE ON THE PROPOSED HEREFORD
TRANSPORT HUB

PORTFOLIO AREA: | HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORTATION

CLASSIFICATION: Open
Wards Affected

Hereford — Central Ward

Purpose
To update the Committee on progress in respect of the Transport Hub concept being explored by

Hereford Futures in association with the redevelopment within the Edgar Street Grid area of
Hereford.

Recommendation

THAT: the contents of the report are noted.
Key Points Summary

e The Transport Hub is a concept for integrating access at Hereford Rail Station which forms
part of a wider set of proposals for the Edgar Street Grid area.

e Delivery of the Hub is contingent on progress made in re-developing the Edgar Street Grid
and implementation of the link road.

e A Regional Growth Fund bid has been submitted to government to secure funding to deliver
the link road.

e Development of the Hub concept is being led by the Hereford Futures team and progress has
been made in terms of discussions with Network Rail and Arriva Trains which own and
manage the rail station and key areas of land to the front of the station forming the existing
forecourt area.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Steve Burgess, Transportation Manager (01432) 260968

$qumid2z0.doc 26Nov08

45



Introduction and Background

1

The proposals for a sustainable transport hub, located at Hereford Rail Station first emerged
during consultation on the draft Edgar Street Grid Masterplan and were incorporated in the final
Masterplan endorsed by Cabinet on 11 September 2008. The Masterplan indicates that the hub
will “incorporate multi-modal forms of transport including cycle hire and opportunities for other
green travel options”.

The transport hub is located in an area identified as Station Square in the Masterplan and
development of this area is closely related to the construction of the link road and includes
improved pedestrian connectivity with the existing city centre and the ESG area via a new
pedestrian link to be provided between the rail station and Blackfriars. The Masterplan is
included at Appendix 1 and helps set the hub in the wider context.

Key Considerations

Relationship to the Link Road

3

Development of the transport hub is currently linked to the delivery of the Link Road. The plan
at Appendix 1 indicates the relationship between the hub and the alignment of the new road.
The Link Road provides a number of opportunities to improve access to the rail station and
enable greater integration with pedestrian links, cycle links and bus services.

A bid has been submitted by Hereford Futures to the Regional Growth Fund to secure funding
required to construct the link road. The bid has been endorsed by the Marches Local Enterprise
Partnership. It is anticipated that Government will determine the bid by the end of April 2011.

Progress on Transport Hub

5

Preliminary designs of a hub were developed during late 2008. This was followed by a major
public consultation event in the TGS Bowling Centre on 29 January 2009, which was attended
by representatives of Hereford’s transportation organisations (rail, bus, taxi, cycle), special user
groups (including the Royal National College for the Blind), as well as the wider general public.

Discussions on identifying options for a Transport Hub around the Railway Station resumed
during the summer and autumn of 2010. These were, and continue to be, based on
opportunities for joint development with Network Rail and Arriva Trains (Wales). Additionally
consideration has also been given to assisting with land and business requirements that will
arise from the construction of the Link Road.

The main features of these discussions have been:

Exploiting earlier design work of a hub arrangement, and its aspirations for facilities including
buildings to ‘frame’ the new ‘station square’ area.

Enabling retail to retain a presence east of the station.

Ensuring that the current and future needs of Network Rail and Arriva Trains (Wales),
principally access and increased parking to meet forecast growth, are incorporated.

46



¢ |dentifying opportunities for joint development. An example could be between Sanctuary
Group and Network Rail/Arriva Trains (Wales) in the development, west of the Station, of a
multi-story station car park faced on the southern, Link Road side with housing units.

8 Responses from both Network Rail and Arriva Trains (Wales) have been very encouraging
indicating a willingness to enter into more detailed discussions when the outcome of the bid for
the Link Road funding is known.

9 Further more detailed work to progress the transport hub is currently on hold pending the
outcome of the Regional Growth Fund bid for the Link Road and subsequent programme of
delivery of that scheme should the bid be successful.

Community Impact

10 None as a result of this report.
Financial Implications

11 None as a result of this report
Legal Implications

12 None as a result of this report.
Risk Management

13  None as a result of this report.

Appendices

Appendix 1: ESG Masterplan

Background Papers

None

47



48



e -
]\ CR

BR

49

KEY

Transport Hub
Roads/link road
Football Club

Canal and waterways
Land parcels
Walkways

Proposed new housing

Pedestrian areas
Education/Training Centre
Amenity area

Multi-storey car park
Commercial/Residential

Business relocation site

NOT TO SCALE

N / |\ XK 7\ AR \\\\|

~a\

7= \

— NN T/

b

! AT A




50



AGENDA ITEM 11

Herefordshire

Council
MEETING: ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
DATE: 28 FEBRUARY 2011

TITLE OF REPORT: | CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING

REPORT BY: DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES

Wards Affected

County-wide

Purpose

To advise Scrutiny Committee on progress of the 2010/11 Environment Capital Programme
within the overall context of the Council’s Capital Programme.

Key Decision
This is not a Key Decision.

Recommendation

THAT the report be noted.
Introduction and Background

1 This report is largely based on the latest round of capital monitoring, which involved
the examination of all schemes at the end of December 2010. The Environment
Capital Working Group is keeping the overall spending position under careful review.

2 The total spent and committed at 31 December 2010 is £16.3 million or 87% of the
Revised Forecast. The actual amount spent at the end of December is £13.1 million.

Key Considerations

3 The Capital budgets for Environment for 2010/11 are shown in summary on
Appendix 1, on scheme basis with funding arrangements indicated in overall terms.

4 The total of the Capital Programme increased to £18.749m from the figure of
£17.998m previously reported to this committee. This is an increase of £751k and
relates to the following variances:

a. An increase of £50k in relation to Hereford Transport Strategy in relation to
the Relief Road Study funded from Growth Point revenue grant.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Cathy Stokes, Principal Accountant on (01432) 261849

51




b. An increase of £95k in relation to Stretton Closed Landfill site following the
allocation of corporate funding for future site works

c. An increase of £6k in relation to the purchase of Radios for the Parking and
Community Protection teams, this is funded through revenue budget savings
within Parking.

d. An addition of £600k for the off site highway improvements associated with
the new Livestock Market. This is funded by Growth Bid Capital Grant.

5 At the end of January 2011, the final position on the Ross Flood Alleviation Scheme
has been agreed with the main contractors and the final additional funding
requirement has been agreed to be funded in full by the Environment Agency. The
final cost of the project is £12.5 million.

Financial Implications

6 These are contained in the body of the report. The forecast is based on the Capital
Budget Monitoring to the end of November 2010.

Appendix
Appendix 1 — Summary Environment Capital Programme Budget 2010/11

Background Papers

o None identified.

52



Summary Environment Capital Programme Budget 2010/11

Schemes

Hereford Integrated Transport Strategy:
Behavioural Change Countrywide
Hereford Transport Strategy

Rural Herefordshire Transport Strategy
Road Safety Strategy

Maintaining the Transport Network
Integrated Transport Staff Contribution
LTP TOTAL

Other Schemes

Emergency Fund Winter Damage 2010/11

Growth Area Funding (Hereford Transport Infrastructure)
Widemarsh Street Refurbishment Scheme

Hereford Crematorium

Grafton Travellers' site

Leominster Closed Landfill Site Monitoring Infrastructure

Waste Infrastructure Capital Grant
Connect 2

Stretton Sugwas Closed Landfill Site )
Strangford Closed Landfill Site

Taxi CCTV Scheme

Specific Road Safety Grant
Improvements of A40 & A465
Transport Asset Management Plan
Pay on foot Parking Scheme
Rotherwas Access Road

Yazor Brook Flood Alleviation Scheme
Purchase of Gritters

Parking & Community Radios
Livestock Market Access Improvements
Ross Flood Alleviation Scheme

Section 106 Schemes
OTHER SCHEMES TOTAL

Expenditure to be Financed

Funded by:

Supported Capital Expenditure (Revenue)
LTP Prudential Borrowing

LTP Grant

Bridge Strengthening Grant

Growth Point Grant (Capital)

Growth Point Grant (Revenue)

Department of Transport Grant

Specific Road Safety Grant

DEFRA Grant - Closed Landfill

Prudential Borrowing

Capital receipts Reserve

Waste Infrastructure Capital Grant

Sustrans - Connect 2

Detrunking Grant - Improvements of A40 & A465
Transport Asset Management Plan
Advantage West Midlands (Hereford Futures)
Taxi CCTV Scheme

Total Environment Capital Funding

Appendix 1

i % Spend &
Revised Forecast . Spend & T
Forse:ats;:z:rt ;::2 as at 31st c:z:g:a'sr: Commitments to 31st 31Corgmlttedbto
p December 2010 December 2010 st ecer;of(;'
£000 £000 £000 £000 %
62 62 0 33 53.2
640 722 82 519 71.9
360 358 (2) 324 90.5
785 755 (30) 627 83.0
11,176 11,176 0 10,399 93.0
678 678 0 678 100.0
13,701 13,751 50 12,580 91.5
1,017 1,017 777 76.4
0 0
891 891 952 106.8
27 27 5 18.5
33 33 0 -
10 10 10 100.0
115 115 115 100.0
558 558 286 51.3
25 120 95 57 47.5
15 15 10 66.7
22 22 0 -
27 27 27 100.0
130 130 17 13.1
56 56 56 100.0
120 120 120 100.0
187 187 165 88.2
750 750 696 92.8
288 288 290 100.7
26 32 6 -
600 600 140 23.3
2
16
4,297 4,998 701 3,741 74.8
17,998 18,749 751 16,321 87.0

Forecast as at 30th

Revised Forecast

as at 31st

September 2010 December 2010
£000 £000
12,315 12,315
1,000 1,000
174 174
95 95
600

117 167
1,017 1,017
27 27

95

1,797 1,803
33 33

115 115
350 350
130 130

56 56
750 750
22 22
17,998 18,749

53



54



AGENDA ITEM 12

Herefordshire

Council
MEETING: ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
DATE: 28 FEBRUARY 2011

TITLE OF REPORT: | REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING

REPORT BY: DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES

Wards Affected

County-wide

Purpose
To advise members of the Environment Committee of the financial position for the

Environment budgets for the six months to 31% December 2010. The report lists the
variations against budget at this stage in the year and the projected outturn for the year.

Key Decision
This is not a Key Decision.
Recommendation

THAT the report be noted

Key Points Summary
. The current position for Environment is a projected overspend of £1.096 million.

. The Sustainable Communities and Public Health Directorates are also adhering to
the Chief Executive’s ‘freeze on all discretionary spend” which is being monitored
and reported.

. There is currently a saving of £271k identified by the Sustainable Communities
Directorate in response to the Chief Executive’s discretionary spend edict to help
mitigate the Council’s overall budget overspend position in October. This is derived
from various one off savings across the Directorate including surplus planning fee
income of £155k.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Cathy Stokes, Principal Accountant on 01432 261849

55




Key Considerations

1. The detailed Budget Monitoring Report to 31% December 2010 is attached at
Appendix 1 for Members’ consideration.

2. The total Environment budget for 2010/11 has increased to £25,571k from the
amount reported to previous meeting, which was £24,922k. This is a net increase of
£649k and mainly relates to the following virements;

a) The addition of £760k from Area Based Grant funding for expenditure to the end of
October 2010. This specifically related to:

Public Transport £542k
Highways Maintenance (detrunking) £188k
Sustainability £30k

b) The reduction of £117k in relation to Growth Bid revenue grant being used to support
Local Framework Development work in the Environment Capital Programme,
specifically in relation to the Outer Distributor Road project costs.

3. The summary position is set out in the table below and included in full at Appendix 1.
2010/11 Annual Projected Under/
Budget  Outturn (Over)
spend
Service Area £000 £000 £000

Sustainable Communities

Highways, Transport & Community 10,043 11,580 (1,537)
Services

Environment, Planning & Waste 13,383 13,213 170
Savings 163 (108) 271
Public Health

Environmental Health & Trading 1,982 1,982 0
Standards

Environment Total 25,571 26,667 (1,096)

Highways, Transport & Community Services

4. The Highways, Transport & Community Services budgets that fall within the
Environment Scrutiny portfolio are expected to overspend by £1.537 million for the year.

5. There is an overspend of £1.582 million in relation to Winter Maintenance; this reflects

56



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

the impact of a heavy winter thus far. As at 31st December 2010, 7053 tonnes of salt
had been used compared with 1800 tonnes used for the same period last year. Up to the
end of December 2009, the council’s gritters carried out 36 priority runs, 4 secondary
runs and 4 part treatments whereas in the period up to December 2009 there were 65
priority runs, 12 secondary ones and 11 part treatments.

Pressures within Transportation budgets have been mitigated since last reported and is
currently forecasting a net under spend of £45k due to the recent bad weather resulting
in reduced costs for concessionary fares.

It was previously reported that there was expected shortfall of income for the year on
Car Park income of £125k. Further one off savings have now been identified in
expenditure budgets within Highways, Transport & Community Services to address this
pressure along with the estimated impact of the increase in the standard VAT rate from
1 January 2011. Adverse weather conditions have also affected income levels in
relation to Car Park ticket sales with 8% lower received in December 2010 than in
December 2009 however latest figures show that the revised income target for the year
are still expected to be met following an improved January position.

There is currently a saving of £271k identified by the Sustainable Communities
Directorate in response to the Chief Executive’s discretionary spend edict to help
mitigate the council’s overall budget overspend position in October. This is derived from
various one off savings across the Directorate including surplus planning fee income of
£155k and utilisation of Housing and Planning Delivery Grant received in previous years.

Environment, Planning & Waste

Environment, Planning & Waste services are currently forecasting that they will
underspend by £170k in 2010/11.

One off savings in relation to Planning income of £155k are expected to be achieved in
2010/11 based on income to date and will be used to mitigate the Council’'s overspend
position.

It was previously reported that pressures within the planning services in relation to
scanning and legal costs would be met from Housing and Planning Delivery Grant in
2010/11 and that these pressures are expected to diminish in 2011/12 when new
document scanning systems are introduced. The remaining grant funding, which is
expected to be £102k, will also be used to mitigate the Councils overspend position in
2010/11.

Based on the latest estimates, available at the end of December 2010, the joint Waste
Disposal PFl contract costs for 2010/11 predicts an underspend of £170k for
Herefordshire. The outturn estimate reflects a one-off Landfill Tax credit £613k, of which
£113k has been received to date, and reduced costs for Energy for Waste. Further
updates of the budget position have now been received and there is likely to be a further
reduction in joint contract costs of £50k for the year.

The outturn estimate incorporates the 1% increase in Herefordshire’s share of the joint
contract to reflect the current tonnages. Whilst it was previously reported that
Herefordshire’s tonnage share had increased by 1.6% above the base, compared with
Worcestershire, this has now reduced to 1.3%.

Following the resolution of a minor dispute with FOCSA, in January 2011, the costs of
the waste collection contract for 2010/11 are expected to reduce. Further savings are

57



15.

16.

17.

18.

also expected in relation to efficiency savings achieved through investment of capital
grant funding from DEFRA and the hold on discretionary spend.

Environmental Health & Trading Standards

Overall Environmental Health & Trading Standards are expected to meet budget for the
year.

Recovery Plan

The winter reserve of £500k has been assumed to be utilised in the overall forecast, it is
needed to mitigate the pressure caused by the severe winter conditions.

Financial Implications
These are contained in the body of the report.

Risk Management

The risks are set out in the body of the report in terms of the pressures and the report
notes the actions planned to address these.

Appendix

Appendix 1 — Summary Environment Revenue Budget 2010/11

Background Papers

None identified.

58



SUMMARY ENVIRONMENT REVENUE BUDGET REPORT 2010/11
AS AT 31ST DECEMBER 2010

Highways, Transport & Community Services
MAC Services
MAC Client Team

Highways

Public Conveniences

Highways Running Costs (inc staff)
Roads Maintenance

NRSWA

Emergency Maintenance
Winter Maintenance

Detrunking Grant

Land Drainage/Flood Alleviation
Bridgeworks

Street Lighting

Traffic Management

Street Cleansing

Public Rights of Way

Parking & Comm Protection Management & Admin
Community Protection Team
Parking

Transportation
Road Safety Aip

Bus Stations

Design Planning

S38

Public Transport Rural
Public Transport
Concessionary Travel
Road Safety

Running costs

Staff

Searches

Sub-Total Highways, Transport & Community Services

Appendix 1

Under/

Under/ (over)

Annual (over) Actual to Budget spend
Budget Outturn spend date to date to date
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
1,199 1,199 1,897 1,871 (26)
165 165 224 255 31
383 383 331 264 (67)
382 382 313 318 5
1,692 1,692 1,136 1,137 1
(132) (132) 4 21 17
155 155 155 103 (52)
799 2,381 (1,582) 579 313 (266)
(42) (42) 0 0 0
172 172 108 100 (8)

57 57 (13) 35 48

850 850 773 606 (167)

81 81 79 49 (30)
1,247 1,247 816 836 20
266 266 203 183 (20)
69 69 52 52 0

287 287 205 200 (5)
(1,284) (1,284) (869)  (966) (97)
92 92 61 78 17
(16) (16) 10 5 (5)

55 55 (10) 12 22
(46) (46) (52) (46) 6
121 206 (85) 80 91 1"
1,679 1,679 1,818 1,695 (123)
1,112 1,062 50 894 678 (216)
147 112 35 79 112 33
133 133 107 102 (5)
440 395 45 287 345 58
(20) (20) (20) (19) 1
10,043 11,580 (1,537) 9,247 8,430 (817)

59



SUMMARY ENVIRONMENT REVENUE BUDGET REPORT 2010/11
AS AT 31ST DECEMBER 2010

Appendix 1

Under/
Under/ (over)
Annual (over) Actual to Budget spend
Budget Outturn spend date to date to date
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Environment, Planning & Waste
Planning Services
Building Control (101) (101) (110) (77) 33
Conservation 730 730 533 535 2
Development Control 149 149 127 110 (17)
Forward Planning 598 598 52 (33) (85)
Planning Management 334 334 273 246 (27)
Head Of Planning Services 99 99 73 74 1
B Servs, Mkt & Fairs Management 19 19 7 14 7
Markets, Fairs and Street Trading (219) (219) (154) (171) (17)
Bereavement Services
Cemeteries Budget 44 44 1 21 20
Hereford Crematorium (361) (361) (250) (264) (14)
Waste Management
Waste Disposal 7,867 7,697 170 4,555 4,306 (249)
Household Waste Recycling 2,079 2,079 1,213 1,316 103
Trade Waste Collection (476) (476) (522) (470) 52
Domestic Waste Collection 2,434 2,434 1,412 1,593 181
Sustainability 187 187 135 143 8
Sub-Total Environment, Planning & Waste 13,383 13,213 170 7,345 7,343 (2)
Environmental Health & Trading Standards
Commercial Environmental Health 366 366 267 270 3
Pollution 336 336 193 195 2
Air & Water Pollution 73 73 75 43 (32)
Landfill & Contaminated Land 334 334 189 211 22
Pest Control 16 16 (7) 11 18
Animal Health & Welfare 128 128 115 119 4
Trading Standards 380 380 255 281 26
Licensing (125) (125) (195) (167) 28
Travellers' Sites 43 43 53 33 (20)
Envt Health Management & Support 415 415 322 309 (13)
Public Health Support 16 16 14 16 2
Sub-Total Environmental Health & Trading Standards 1,982 1,982 0 1,281 1,321 40

60



AGENDA ITEM 13

Herefordshire
Council
MEETING: ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
DATE: 28™ FEBRUARY 2011
TITLE OF REPORT: | ENVIRONMENT PERFORMANCE UP TO
DECEMBER 2010
REPORT BY: Principal Directorate Services Officer

CLASSIFICATION: Open
Purpose

To report on the current outturns and progress against the actions for key national performance
indicator targets for Environment Scrutiny Committee up to December 2010. This report has used
the same format as used previously, and now incorporates the adopted performance rating system
being used in the new corporate performance report for Cabinet; an explanation of the ratings is
shown at Appendix A.

Recommendation(s)
THAT:

(a) the report be noted;
and;
(b) areas of concern continue to be monitored.

Key Points Summary

o The majority of targets across the services have supporting actions that are being delivered and
closely monitored; with work continuing within the services to ensure that any improvements
that need implementing to address any targets that are currently failing are introduced.

o Overall the actions are being delivered and are assisting the services to meet the targets.
However, some targets are still failing but there are mitigating actions in place to address these.

Reasons for Recommendations

1. To update the Scrutiny Committee Members on Environment performance.

2. To ensure Scrutiny Committee are kept appraised of the plans to improve performance within
the services.

Introduction and Background

3. The performance is monitored against the National Indicators (NI) that were introduced from
April 2008 Regular reports are sent to the Government of the West Midlands and many of the

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Chris Jones, Principal Directorate Services Officer, Sustainable Communities Directorate,
chris.jones@herefordshire.gov.uk or on (01432) 261596

61

$k14hmoOes.doc



government departments.

This report covers the Performance Indicator Outturns as at 31%' December 2010, against
target figures for 2010-11, along with information about Direction of Travel and Status, which
are defined as:

Direction of Travel — indicates whether the current position demonstrates improvement
against the previous year’s out-turn

Status — indicates whether the current position demonstrates progress in line with the agreed
target — G = Green (exceeded target by over 10%, B = Blue (on target or above target by up
to 10%), A = Amber (within 5% of the target) and R = Red (5% or more below target).

Progress continues to be assessed regularly, together with the risks and the actions being
taken to address these and improve performance.

Key Considerations

6.

10.

11.

12.

13.

NI 182 - Business Satisfaction with Regulatory Services — Data due to be reported by mid
December 2010 for the second quarter as there is a time delay of approximately 2-3 months
for the information to be analysed and reported. However the outturn to September 2010
reported that 76% of business were satisfied with regulatory services and therefore is rated as
Green as it is 10% or more above the target.

NI 195 - Improved street cleanliness and environmental cleanliness - The revised action
plan that is in place with Amey has delivered all of the 4 sub targets in the second quarter and
is rated as blue, which means that they continue to achieve the target for 2010/11. There
continues to be improvement in 1 of the sub targets that is rated as green as it is 10% or more
above the target .

NI 196 - Improved street cleanliness and environmental cleanliness — fly tipping - The
revised action plan has ensured that this target continues to be achieved and therefore rated
as blue as it is on target; with the community protection team continuing the enforcement
work.

NI 193 — Percentage of municipal waste — Landfilled — The amount of residual waste per
household continues to decrease with increased recycling performance. There is also a
national trend of a reduced amount of waste coming from households during the Recession.
This trend could be threatened by any upturn in the economy. This indicator is on target and
is currently rated as blue

NI 192 — Percentage of household waste sent for reuse, recycling and composting —
The direction of travel on this indicator is improving despite this the indicator is currently
amber as the outturn is below target by up to 5%. The team continue to promote recycling
and are confident that the target will be achieved for 2010/11.

NI 157 — Processing of Planning Applications — All of the three sub targets of this indicator
are now on track and are rated as green, the outturn is above target by over 10%. The focus
remains on processing the major and strategic project applications as these contribute most
directly to the economic regeneration of the county.

NI 197 — Improved biodiversity — This indicator is currently below target and therefore is
rated as amber. Work is taking place on 27 sites currently, however there is a halt on Area
Based Grant spend that may affect the delivery of the challenging target of 50 sites.

NI 168 — Condition of Principal Roads & NI 169 Condition of non-principal roads — This

indicator is currently blue, the targets have become more challenging as a result of the severe

winter weather. However, this is being mitigated with an extensive programme of
62



14.

15.

16.

maintenance and improvement work for highways which has been agreed with Amey and
continues to be monitored on a monthly basis.

NI 47 — Reduction in the number of People killed or seriously injured - This indicator is
currently green, above target by over 10%. The Planning and Transportation Road Accident
Investigation and Prevention teams continue to lead on a wide range of education, training
and publicity to address road traffic collisions. The latest outturn was 61 up to the end of
December. However, it needs to be recognised that these figures are not final and are subject
to change by West Mercia Constabulary until they are finalised at the end of the calendar
year. Furthermore, the 3 year outturn was 86, which continues to show the reduction in the
number of people killed or seriously injured.

Customer Contact Satisfaction — This is measured on a monthly basis across a number of
services within the Sustainable Communities and Public Health Directorates; and for the year
up to December 78% of the respondents were satisfied with the service that they received
overall while 14% were dissatisfied. (8% expressed no opinion).

Further information in respect of the performance outturns can be found in Appendix B.

Community Impact

17.

Not Applicable.

Financial Implications

18.

None Identified

Legal Implications

19.

None Identified

Risk Management

20. None ldentified

Consultees

21. None Identified

Appendices

22. Appendix A :  Key to Performance Reports

23.  Appendix B : Details of Key Performance outturns for Environment Scrutiny for the 2010/11

financial year

Background Papers

25.

None identified.

63



64



Appendix A

KEY TO PERFORMANCE REPORTS
LEVEL 1

PERFORMANCE AGAINST TARGETS AND ACTION PLANS

Overall, performance is significantly better than target(s)

Achieved, or on track to achieve, target(s)

Slightly behind target(s)

Significantly behind target(s)

DIRECTION OF TRAVEL

Overall, performance is better than for the same period last
year

4» Overall, performance is the same as for this period last
year

Overall, performance is behind that for the same period last
v year

65



Appendix A

LEVELS 2 & 3

PERFORMANCE AGAINST TARGETS AND ACTION PLANS

Outturn is 10% or more above target

Outturn is above target by up to 10%

or, where up to date performance data against target is
not available for good reason, the action plan shows
satisfactory progress

Outturn is below target, but within 5%

or where up to date performance data against target is not
available for good reason, the action plan shows
inadequate progress

Outturn is 5% or more below target
or no target has been set without good reason

or there is no action plan

N.B. Where data is available this determines the judgement made
for each indicator. Action plans are used to judge performance
only where relevant data is unavailable.

DIRECTION OF TRAVEL

Performance is better than for the same period last year

) | Performance is the same as for this period last year

WV | Performance is behind that for the same period last year

66



67

syeam g ulyym suoneodde JayiQ (o

. senunWWoy Syeam g ulyym suoneoldde souly (q
L1L/0L0Z Ul [[e9A0 Jab1e) uo Ose ale Jayeq si Jobbi

suoneoljdde Joujw pue Jofepy “||esan0 Jobe) uo sulewal )i Azenuep Jo yyuow ayj ui jobie} mojaq si suoneoljdde J1ayjo, jo Buissaooid ayy ybnoyyy| neq st 'a o ho_.owh_n_ Syeem ¢, uiyym suopeaydde Jofepy (e

syeam g ulyym suonesidde soyio

Ssyeam g ulypm suonesidde soulpy

syeam ¢ ulyim suoneodde sofepy

:suoneoydde Buiuueld jo Buissaooid — /G1 IN

Kioynjeg
*o0e|d 93{E} O} SANUNUOD UE|d HOodSURI ] [E007 JUSLIND BY) JO UonEjuBWS|dW|
'1102 A1eniga4 Jo pus sy} 81040q SpeW 3q 0} S| YOIYM ‘UOISIoap jaulged e Buimojjoy passaiboid aq [Im ¢ 17 aY Jo Juswdojersp Jayuny

*BuloBuo S| BULIO)IUO| BOIAISS [BIDIBUIIOD B sapiunwwo)
Aq pa1anoo Apealle s YoIym JO SUO ‘UMBIPYIIM SI8M SBDIAISS OM} AlUQ “Jaquisideg Bulinp pamaus) pue PaMaIASI S19M SIOBIUOD SIAISS SNQ aY ] | e e (0102 Yoren) %98 %EL %98 %08 Jopeq si 1ebbig 9lqeutelsng (¥v1) swp uo Buiuuni sadIA18s SNq — 8/ IN
*90IAI8s o1vads ay) Buipiroid siojelado sng yim| 40 Jopaug

diysseuped ul yym jjesp ale swajqoid Ayenjound Jo swis) ul Buisiie sanss| 9| 2 Jo 1961e) 01/6002 1NO Papasoxe aABY M) "JBSA 4oBS SyjuowW
1ejnarJed JnoybBnoiy) y9am ay) Jo sAep ulepsd uo siasn Jebuassed snq Jo sjdwes e axe) jey) skaains snoliea Aq Ajlenuue psjoaj|od si ejep sy |

diysiauped

.wo:@-:._otwa jua||@2x8 panuiuod |u®mhmﬂ BA0QE WINJNO }saje] eu eu AO—.ON «waw %9/ %€9 %29 Japeq st _wmm_m 0__32“«“Mwu—ow=ﬁ_ SBIINIBS Eoum_zmw_ ylim uonoejsijes ssauisng — zgL IN

- - EEIVER

“Ajyiuow pamainal si yolym Aswy yim paaibe usaq sey yolym skemybiy 1oy som Juswanoidwi pue soueusjUlEW JO swwelBoid aAisusIXe Uy sopunwwog
‘Aiyyuow pamainsl Bulaq (vv1) (ueid eoueusyurew Aemybiy jsurebe
@ouewopad yym ‘L L-010g Joj pajuswaldui pue Aswy yim pesibe useq sey juswebeuew josjep Aemybly Joj piepue)s Buibusjieyd alow v| e e (010Z WIeN) %6 %8 %6 %kb Joneq sl Jellews mﬁm%om”.% Kianjap :Axoud) speou [ediound-uou Jo uonIPUod — 69l N
Aq B
} 'JOASMOH "JOUIBIM JBJUIM 819ASS B} JO Joedwi ay) Jo JInsal e se Buibusiieyo aJow swooaq sey jebie) sJeak Juaino ay L
‘sisAeue ejep 1o} siojoweled ay) Uo pajiem |is S| UOISIoap senuNWWoy () (oo e o
. N “OL- ue|d adueusjuiew Aemybly jsuiebe
Jodsueu ] Joj Juswpedaq e S|ge|ieAe SI LINJNO SY) 810497 ‘ISASMOY Paysiul Sey Jeak Sl 1o} UoNos||00 Bleq "0L-600 404 LINKNO Sy} SI BIep SIyL e e (0402 YOIBW) %S %G %G % 10W8q S JajlewS siqeutelsng fioniop .»MMMV mumn_z _nn_o::M oo v:z&fww.— .
o J030811Q R U
uazRI)
sishjeuy 28@ yes | 9ea [ 3des | eouewiopad 11-0L0Z 01-600Z 60-800Z
3 laAei) jo uogoang | Juawebpnp | yseje jobie) aouesa|o] 10302110 pea] 103e31pU|

g xipuaddy

asidiajug g Juswdojaaaqg d1wouosy



638

puUE| 0} JUSS d)sem [ediolUNW JO JUNOWE 8y} 80Npal ( |uNWWod
pad|ay os|e sey 8)Sem |[BISA0 Ul UOONPaAI Y} LGL [N YIM SY "8DIAI8S UOI)0a]|00 Buljokoal pue asnjas mau 8y} JO UOIIONPOJJUI [NJSSAOONS B} UIM| B/ _m:m:o vvoem 46 %00°09 %0€'29 %199 Japeq si Js|lews 8|qeurelsng pajypue| d)sem [edioiunuw Jo % - €61 IN
[IJPUB| WOJ) B)SEM JO UOISISAIP Pasealoul 0} anp |N SiU) Joj Jabie) uo ate ap) "010Z Jequiaoa( L 0} 010z Udy | wouy s|gejieAe ejep a)o|dwod V) %Y J0 1008410
“110T udte (0102) Junwwoo
puoAaq uoges AJunod 8oNpPai 0} 3}I0M JO UONeUIPIo-00 pue Loddns oiyoads 1oy 8oe(d ul Buipuny ou Ajuaund si asay ] "diysiauped aulyspiojeIsH & & (2002) %€ %L'EL Joneq sl Jellews mﬁ_ﬂ_“_m”_:w (vv) su wa £00 - 981 IN
01 020z Aq uononpai %€ e Jo jebie) uoionpas Ajunoo e pasodoud aney Asy pue ||om Buissaiboid sie siepjoyayess pue sieuped 4H jo sbunesy 4o J0p0auIg
Kioymejg|
*pUNO JOU Bl SpUNy JaYUNy Ji 1oW aq (0102 . . . _
jou Aew Jojedipul 8y “puads O@Y Ul J[ey 0} anp BUIPUEISING [|}S BJe SBYIS €7 JOASMOH “0G JO 1961} 8U) SPIEMO) Salis £z uo aoeld Buie) SI 3IoM o o YoLBIN) %Z'EY %0} vy %0CEY %060¢ Joyeq s1 10661 (vv) Ausionpoiq panoidull = 261 IN
diysiaupeq
RELILE
pus-1eak % | N0 PaBOXS IO ‘JoBLU OM OS Jeak JO pud By} Yoeal am Se Juepodw) S0 UBAS g [IIM aJay paliuap! seAleniul ay) Ajuenbasuod
*SUJUOW JSJUIM B} JoA0 d9npal [|Im ydiym Bunsodwoo sjsem uspieb Jo [aas| ybly Ajjeuosess e Aq papoddns si ainbiy BuljoAoas g0y ay) Jey) psjou %080t %ip %09'SE %z'ee 10n9q s1 JeBBIg slqeUIBRISNS Bunsodwoo pue
2q pinoys J| “sjuena [euoijowoid pue sjusAs yBnoiy) uonuaraid ajsem pue Bunsodwoo ‘BuljoAoal ajowoid 0} BNUNUOD [[IM AN “SHIOM Ma) JXaU ° ° ° ° . A 1o 1010010 Buijokoal ‘asnal 1oy Juss 9)Sem ployasnoy Jo % — Z61L IN
salUeyd pue sjiey abe|in 0} sadIAIas BuljoAoss 8onposjul 0} adoy oM SIOJOEIIUOD INO Y)IM Juswsaibe Buimojjo4 'sjooyds o} uoisuedxs :
Jayny pue sjuswdojaAap Je|iwis pue Sje|} aiow o} 8olAIes ay) Bujonpoiul Ag anunuod | souewsopad BuljoAoal o JuawaAoidw Jeyung
92IAIDG|
“aAlj0aye Alon - | apelb Je sulewa AJUoyne ay) 1o} a100s ejap pajyblom sy ‘INo palied
a1am suooadsul a1e Jo AINp g| "S8joU Jajsuel} 8)sem aonpodd O} ain|iey Joj PANSS| 819M S,Nd- OM | “UOINED [BULIO) B paAiedal uosiad suQ v PIS (0102 49qwis09q) | apeio | apeio 1819 SI JojeWS slqeUIRISNS Buiddy Ay — !
“S)S00 L2933 UM 00SF Pauly Sem puodss auy) ‘abieydsip [BUOKIPUOD B PAAISOSI JUEPUSSSP SUO - UOHDIAUOD € Ul Pa)Nsal Yiog ‘Unog sajelisiBejy je | epe1g . 10 BUE.Q |EJUBLULIOIIAUS pUE SSaUIUEs|o J981)S paroidwl — 961 IN
suopnoaso.d g Jayuny e alam alay) Jequisda uj “ybiy urews. buiddn-A)) 1suiebe suonoy (aseaioul %8'0L B PAMOYS Jey} yjuow ise| wodj uonisod :
PaAcidw Yonw e - 8e810U1 %6'h) 01/6002 Ul £ O} paedwioo pi sjuspioul |26 (6002 Ul +9) J9qwisoa ul papioos. Buiddi-Al Jo sjuspioul g
e v (0102 AON) %0 %L %L %l Bunsod-Ai4 (p
ey v (0102 AON) %L %l %e %l nyeio (o
‘suonesado jo adoos
0} papuajul si Ji pue 8jep 0} |nJysaddns JNETN usaq sey EU_N&ENO siylL .ODN_Q 9.} 0} 8np si ues|d ayj aio0jaq uzm_: By} S9|21YaA Jo eale
1 aoe|d uae) aAeY sdeams pajeulpioo) 010z AIne e < (010Z AON) %6 %8 %6 %el smujeq (q
Ul paduUswWWod sadIyaA Uwvtma JO sawn|oA zm_z yjim sease m:_uwmhmu Em_mQEmQ m:_w:NO_O }oaJis e seale ueqin ul snjBp JO S[8A8| 8y} 8onpal 0 |
“sayouel} ASAINS Yjuow-{ pUuOOaS pue Jsilj AU} Joj SI BJep SIY |
e < (0102 noN) %S %S %S %S Jonr (e
J1opaq S| Jojlews

10 10108110

|EJUSLLUOIIAUS pUE SSBUIUBad Joauls paroJdwi — wm— IN

‘€61 PUE 261 IN senunWWoY
YpIM uoiounfuod ul peas aq pinoys SisAjeue siyl °,wod aysgem mau e Bur pue s19)s0dwioo awoy soud paonpal Bunnquisip 65 07 5 . 310" PR SqEUIEISh (1) ployesnoy ad sisem ployesnoy [enpisa: —
LIS/ 9JBH ‘P00 BA0T, SE Yons saAleniul yBnoiy) uonesiwiuiw a)sem Bur AlBuoy)s usaq aABY BM UONIPPE U| "SJBWID JILIOUODD v v ™ 02608 gl 96'6€9 10069 Heq s elleus IqeuiEisng V) pioy 4 1M ploy | 1EnpY J6LIN
JUBLIND BY} O} PAINGUNE S| YOIYM SJSEM PIOYSSNOY Ul UOIONPaI [EUOleU & usaq sey aiay L ‘jobie) uey) eyaq Buiwiopad Apuaind si jojeaipu) 40 Jopead
uazy1
JUSWUOIIAUT
‘pajieme si Buipuny ©gy ay) Jo J0adsal Ul UCISIBP By} SE sU Je 8q ABW SaInseau [elpawal
By} JO SUWIOS "Pajeal) Usaq SABY IO JUSLUIES) PASU JayNa Jey) payiuapl Bureq se! ads U)im Bale SIy) Ul 9pew aq 0} SanuNuod ssaiboid
(ebelone (obeiane (obeiane (obeiane sanUNWWOoY (1) (1eak sepusies) suepiooe
“aInny ul [9A9] v v Jeak-g) 98 Jeah-g) g0l | 1eah-g) OLL leah ¢) Jayeq sI J9jews a|qeure}sng oWen peos i painful AISNOLSS Jo p oidosad — n.w N
SIy} uig)SNS 0} Nd1YIp @A0id Aew )i 210j818Y) PUE BSN BJOIYBA Ul 9SEB108P B BUISNED UINJUMOP DILIOUOIS BY) O} UMOP 8q Aew Jeak siy} unyno 19 (0102) 924 | (6002) SOL SiLL 10 1008110 : o i
MOJ B 4oNs o} uoseal ay} Jo ed JyBnoyy st jey) Buiou YUom S1}| SINSIEIS [BUOHEN UlM SUOSLEAWIOD SWOS MOJ|E O} J8pIo U ‘Jaquisjdes
/1snBny paseajal aq M yoiym ‘poday Atewwng Ajensed 0L0Z 8yl Ul je paxoo| aq [jim sainbly asay) Jo dn—osew ay) JO UMOPYESI] B pue
ouewlopad joble) papasoxa sieak siy) Joj s,buluoseas ay] "9g Jo uinpno (1eak-¢) j[esano ue ul Bunnsal ‘gLz 1o} papaadxe usaq sey jabie) ay] |
sishjeuy 2eq iddes | 9e@ [ 3des [ eouewsopad | 11-0L0Z | 01-600Z | 608002 | [ T
i |9ARI] jO uondalqg _ Juawabpnp _ 1seje _ 19b1e] _ _ _ EENCIEETR _ 1030811Q pea _ 103e21pU|

SaljlUNWWo) 13jeg

g xipuaddy



AGENDA ITEM 14

Herefordshire

Council
MEETING: ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
DATE: 28 FEBRUARY 2010

TITLE OF REPORT: WORK PROGRAMME

REPORT BY: Democratic Services Officer

CLASSIFICATION: Open
Wards Affected

County-wide.

Purpose

To consider the Committee’s work programme.

Recommendation

THAT subject to any comment or issues raised by the Committee the
Committee work programme be recommended to the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee for approval.

Introduction and Background

1.

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is responsible for overseeing, co-ordinating
and approving the work programme of the Committee, and is required to periodically
review the scrutiny committees work programmes to ensure that overview and
scrutiny is effective, that there is an efficient use of scrutiny resources and that
potential duplication of effort by scrutiny members is minimised.

The work programme, set out at Appendix 1, may be modified by the Chairman
following consultation with the Vice-Chairman and the Directors in response to
changing circumstances.

Should any urgent, prominent or high profile issue arise, the Chairman may consider
calling an additional meeting to consider that issue.

Should Members become aware of any issues they consider may be added to the
scrutiny programme they should contact the Democratic Services Officer to log the
issue so that it may be taken into consideration by the Chairman when planning
future agendas or when revising the work programme.

To enable the Committee to track the result of previous recommendations Appendix
2 is attached for information only. Where possible this includes a comment by the
relevant officer on the current position concerning the issue at the time of going to
print.

Background Papers

None identified.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Paul James, Democratic Services Officer, on 01432 260460

69




70



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME
For consideration by Committee on 28 February 2011

9.30am 4 July 2011

o Recycling — actions being taken to encourage further
recycling.

o Land Maintenance and its effect upon the County (e.g.
Hedge cutting, drainage ditch clearance etc)

o Review of the Herefordshire Travellers’ Policy —
Executive Response to the Scrutiny Review.

. Capital Budget Monitoring

o Revenue Budget Monitoring.

o Report on Performance Indicators.

o Committee Work Programme

9.30am 12 September 2011

. Capital Budget Monitoring

o Revenue Budget Monitoring.

o Report on Performance Indicators.
o Committee Work Programme

9.30am 25 November 2011

o Environmental Performance 2010-11 (Good
Environmental Management - GEM Annual Report)

o Capital Budget Monitoring

o Revenue Budget Monitoring.

. Report on Performance Indicators.

o Committee Work Programme

Items may be added for consideration as the programme is further developed.

Rail Services and Facilities in the County — invite the key providers to a meeting to
discuss issues of concern relating to rail facilities and services. (see minute 50
26.11.10).

Consider any impact of the Open Windrow Greenwaste composting facility at Morton-
on-Lugg (see Minute 60-Committee work programme and Minute 64). Invite
Environment Agency to discuss.

71



72



APPENDIX 2

Provided for the Committee’s information only and not debate.

Progress in response to recommendations made and issues requiring action raised by the

Environment Scrutiny Committee.

Committee date: 28 June 2010

School Travel Plans

Recommendations

Response/Action

A member briefing note be produced
setting out the position concerning how
the three Herefordshire Colleges were
complying with the planning conditions in
relation to travel plans;

Information awaited from planning.

Committee date: 13 July 2010

Review the Rights of Way Service performance and outcomes

Recommendations

Response/Action

should the Herefordshire Local Access
Forum extend an invitation to
Herefordshire Council to meet with the
Minister and MPs to discuss PROW issues,
the Executive be requested that the
Chairman and Vice-Chairman be invited to
represent the views of the Committee.

No date has been set but the Local MP, Jesse Norman
is still keen to observe a Forum meeting and if possible
bring along the relevant minister.

The Cabinet Member and Chair and V-Chair of Scrutiny
will be informed when the HLAF has arranged a
meeting.

Update on the operation of the Planning Committee and Enforcement Function

Recommendations

Response/Action

That the report be noted and a Member
briefing note be provided on the work of
the Section 106 officer together with
progress on implementing and monitoring
agreements.

This information was provided to Members on 13 July
2010 direct from the officer.

Committee date: 26 November 2010

Railways — Update Report

Recommendations

Response/Action

That the position outlined in the report be
noted and the key providers of rail
services and facilities in the County be
invited to a future meeting to discuss
issues of concern.

Noted in the work programme for scheduling for a
future meeting.

73




Report of the Review Group on the Herefordshire Travellers’ Policy

Recommendations

Response/Action

3) the Executive response to the Review be
reported to the first available meeting of
the Committee after the Cabinet Member
(E&ST) has approved his response.

The findings from the Review have been passed to the
Executive for consideration. A report setting out the
Executive response has been listed in the work
programme for the July 2011 meeting.

74




	Agenda
	
	4 MINUTES
	6 Update on Public Rights of Way
	PROW Appendix 1

	7 Road over Rail Bridges
	8 Preliminary Flood Risk Assessment
	Preliminary Flood Risk Assessment Appendix 1

	9 Introduction to Emergency Preparedness Planning for Flooding in Herefordshire
	10 Update on the Proposed Hereford Transport Hub
	Appendix 1 Edgar Street Grid masterplan map

	11 Capital Budget Monitoring
	Capital Report Appendix 1

	12 Revenue Budget Monitoring
	Revenue Report Appendix 1

	13 Environment Performance up to December 2010
	Appendix A - Key to Levels of Performance Report
	Appendix B performance

	14 Committee Work Programme
	Work programme Ap1
	Ap2 -recommedations log to 28 Feb 11


